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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of

Harim Corporation

Audit Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HarorpGration (“the Company”), which comprise the staénts
of financial position as of December 31, 2023 a@@2 the statements of comprehensive income, ceanggjuity
and cash flows for the years then ended, and naiegrising significant accounting policies andestexplanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statetsgmesent fairly, in all material respects, thmaficial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 202Ritsfinancial performance and its cash flowstfe years
then ended in accordance with Korean Internatiivancial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”).

We, also, audited the Internal Accounting Contrgdt8m of Harim Corporation as of Dec. 31, 2023 dasethe
‘Design and Operation Concept System of Internalodnting Control System and expressed unqualiffgdion
in the audit report dated on Mar. 14, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Korgand&ards on Auditing (KSAs). Our responsibilitieslaer those
standards are further described in the AuditorsResibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staents section of
our report. We are independent of the Companyéora@ance with the ethical requirements that arevegit to our
audit of the financial statements in Republic ofré&a and we have fulfilled our other ethical resloitities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe tii@taudit evidence we have obtained is sufficiamd
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cofiegsional judgment, were of most significancetunaudit of the
financial statements as of and for the year endstbmBber 31, 2023. These matters were addressee aomtext
of our audit of the financial statements as a whatel in forming our opinion thereon, and we do protvide a
separate opinion on these matters

Cash-Generating Unit Impairment Test
A. Reason decided as a key audit matter

As described in Note 14 to the financial statemehtssCompany judged that there exist signs of impnt on the
cash-generating units by considering of poor petéorce of the cash generating units in meat pratgssigment
and competitive market situation and conducted impent test pursuant to the K-IFRS No. 1036.



The management of the Company conducted impairtesté on the evaluation target cash-generatings,unit
utilizing external experts. Since the recoverabf@ant of the cash-generating units exceeded thgimgramount,
no impairment losses were recognized. (Refer t@ Nd)

We determined that the impairment test of the eatan target cash-generating units was a key awaliter, as the
management's assumptions and judgments includedeirestimation of the recoverable amount of théhcas
generating units have a significant impact on thesolidated financial statements.

B. How to address the key audit matters in Audit
We conducted audit procedures including the betorespond to the key audit matters

- Evaluation of the design and effectiveness of irakrcontrols operated by management in relation to
impairment assessments, such as reviewing anddpgruture cash flow estimates and key assumption

- Evaluation of management's review results on innpat indicators of the cash-generating units

- Evaluation of the qualifications and independerfde®external expert utilized by management ftinesging
the recoverable amount

- Evaluation of the appropriateness of the valuatimalel used for estimating the recoverable amount

- Evaluation of the reasonableness of the key inptitllles and assumptions used in the recoveralersm
estimation

- Evaluation of the appropriateness of the sengjtavitalysis related to impairment

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged thi Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aingfesentation of the financial statements iroedance with
K-IFRS, and for such internal control as managerdetdgrmines is necessary to enable the prepattiomancial
statements that are free from material misstatenadrather due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, managenserdasponsible for assessing the Company’s abdityontinue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable arsatelated to going concern and using the goingem basis of
accounting unless management either intends taliggl the Company or to cease operations, or haeatistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsiblevinseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurdmmgt avhether the financial statements as a whadrae from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud orreand to issue an auditors’ report that includes apinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurbuati,does not guarantee that an audit conductedéordance
with KSAs will always detect a material misstatetn@hen it exists. Misstatements can arise fromdrauerror

and are considered material if, individually otle aggregate, they could reasonably be expectefluence the
economic decisions of users taken on the bastsesktfinancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with KSAs, wereise professional judgment and maintain profesdion



skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstaterof the financial statements, whether due todfiar error,
design and perform audit procedures responsiveotetrisks, and obtain audit evidence that isaafft and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Tibk of not detecting a material misstatementltegufrom
fraud is higher than for one resulting from eres fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentibamissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internakmdn

Obtain an understanding of internal control relévarthe audit in order to design audit proceduhes are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thepse of expressing an opinion on the effectivendéshe
Company'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policsesl in the preparation of the financial stateshant the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and relsldsures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management'sfuke going concern basis of accounting and,dase
the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiattainty exists related to events or conditions thay cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con as a going concern. If we conclude that a mahter
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atbenth our auditors’ report to the related disclesuin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures asgléguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusiores lzased
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date o&oditors’ report. However, future events or cdinds may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a goige.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure amdectt of the financial statements, including thectisures,
and whether the financial statements representrttlerlying transactions and events in a mannegtttaeves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governaagarding, among other matters, the planned scapgraimg
of the audit and significant audit findings, indlugl any significant deficiencies in internal conttwat we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance wistatement that we have complied with relevantaith
requirements regarding independence and communiggtiethem all relationships and other matters tmaty
reasonably be thought to bear on our independamcewhere applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those chargddguavernance, we determine those matters thatofenest
significance in the audit of the financial statetisesf the current period and are therefore theskadit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ reportasmlaw or regulation precludes public disclosureualthe matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we deterrithat a matter should not be communicated inreport
because the adverse consequences of doing so reaglohably be expected to outweigh the publicéstdrenefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingigninidependent auditors’ report is CPA, Hwang YS&aok.



Samil PricewaterhouseCoopers

Representative Director YOON Hoon Soo

Mar. 14, 2024

This report is effective as of the audit repored@arch 20, 2023 Certain subsequent events or circumstan
which may occur between the audit report date hadiine of reading this report, could have a makémpact
on the accompanying financisdatements and notes thereto. Accordingly, theersaaf the audit report shou
understand that there is a possibility that thevakaudit report may have to be revised to refleetimpact of
such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.
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Harim Corporation
Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2023, and 2022

(In Korean won)

Account Note December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Assets
|. Current Assets 321,545,078,89¢ 378,970,709,239
Cash and cash equivalents 5,7,34 40,503,090,97}7 49,176,877,521
Short-term financial instruments 57,34 23,170,000,000 68,805,380,643
Trade and other receivables 8,33,34 87,456,819,244 80,220,643,317
Other financial assets 11,21,34 471,310,000 197,405,000
Inventories 9 130,859,613,960 130,562,755,051
Biological assets 10 34,398,131,667 46,097,987,13(
Other current assets 11 4,686,113,04 3,909,660,587
Il. Non-current assets 500,697,685,834 504,692,409,28%
Long-term financial instruments 5,7,34 14,241,057,754 6,931,410,300
Long-term trade and other receivables 8,33,34 7,066,839,14D 8,614,502,760
Long-term other financial assets 11,34 - 2,110,000
Investment in subsidiaries 12 26,053,025,170 26,208,095,17(
Property investment 13,14 20,628,328,558 21,967,970,860
Property, plant and equipment 14,33,36 420,388,090,032 425,941,105,904
Intangible assets 17 1,140,946,059 1,571,533,765
Deferred tax assets 28 7,133,596,594 5,420,626,896
Right-of-use asset 15 4,045,802,531 3,760,269,665
Defined benefit assets 22 - 4,274,783,961
Total Assets 822,242,764,734 883,663,118,521
Liabilities
I. Current Liabilities 427,292,001,993 511,944,177,04%
Trade and other payables 18,33,34 108,324,267,440 111,548,344,034
Short-term borrowings 19,34,35,36 313,832,308,784 395,123,035,15¢
Other financial liabilities 20,21,34 - 920,721,646
Current lease liabilities 15,34,36 2,044,396,303 2,029,341,168
Current tax liabilities 28 1,233,404,53 287,251,354
Other current liabilities 20,37 1,857,624,928 2,035,483,688
Il. Non-current liabilities 94,257,445,404 75,633,013,80(
Long-term trade and other payables 18,34 921,695,137 6,199,575,226
Long-term borrowings 19,34,35,36 91,038,899,633 67,803,321,459
Long-term other financial liabilities 15,34,36 1,726,913,453 1,630,117,115
Defined benefit liabilities 569,937,181 -
Total Liabilities 521,549,447,391 587,577,190,845




Account Note December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Equity
|. Capital 29 53,104,851,00 53,104,851,00
1. Capital surplus 29 256,293,544,034 256,293,544,034
IIl. Other capital items 30 (27,437,961,151 (27,437,961,151
V. Retained earnings 31 18,732,883,451 14,125,493,793
Total Equity 300,693,317,33 296,085,927,676
Total Liabilities and Equity 822,242,764,73% 883,663,118,521

The accompanied notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Harim Corporation
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(In Korean won)

Basic earnings per share

Account Note 2023 2022

|. Sales 23,33 1,358,340,380,389 1,289,857,319,178
1. Cost of sales 24,33 1,160,080,929,076 1,100,015,895,818
Ill. Gross profit 198,259,451,313 189,841,423,360
IV. Sales and administrative expenses 24,25 162,902,488,136 154,178,386,819
V. Operating profit 35,356,963,177 35,663,036,541
VI. Other income and expenses 26,33 (2,832,519,213) (4,360,317,200)

Other income 4,471,452,031 14,835,400,847

Other expenses 7,303,971,244 19,195,718,047
VII. Financial income and expenses 21,27,34 (20,512,303,173) (25,166,597,694)

Financial income 26,911,842,667 21,431,543,877

Financial expenses 47,424,145,840 46,598,141,571
VIII. Income before tax 12,012,140,791 6,136,121,647
IX. Income tax expense 28 1,962,430,512 1,754,217,881
X. Net Income 10,049,710,279 4,381,903,766
XI. Other comprehensive income (3,318,576,977) 451,861,729
Items not subsequently reclassified to profit @sto

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 22,28 (3,318,576,977) 451,861,729
XIl. Total comprehensive income 6,731,133,302 4,833,765,495
XIll. Earnings per share 32

95 41

The accompanied notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Harim Corporation

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(In Korean won)

Other capital

Account Capital Capital surplus component Retained earnings Subtotal
Balance at Jan 1, 2022 53,104,851,000 256,293,544,034 (27,437,961,151] 12,477,343,758 294,437,777,641
Net Income - - - 4,381,903, 76¢ 4,381,903, 76¢
Dividend payment - - - (3,185,615,460 (3,185,615,460
Remeasurements for net defined benefit plans - - - 451,861,724 451,861,729
Balance at Dec 31, 2022 53,104,851,p00 256,293,544,034 (27,437,961,151] 14,125,493,793 296,085,927,676
Balance at Jan 1, 2023 53,104,851,000 256,293,544,034 (27,437,961,151] 14,125,493,793 296,085,927,676
Net Income - - - 10,049,710,279 10,049,710,279
Dividend payment - - - (2,123,743,640| (2,123,743,640
Remeasurements for net defined benefit plans - - - (3,318,576,977 (3,318,576,977
Balance at Dec 31, 2023 53,104,851,p00 256,293,544,034 (27,437,961,151] 18,732,883,455% 300,693,317,338

The accompanied notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Harim Corporation
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(In Korean won)

Account

2023

2022

I. Cash flow from operating activities

74,176,041,835

40,692,300,998

(1) Net income

10,049,710,279

4,381,903,766

(2) Adjustment

97,783,296,432

73,641,655,979

Income tax expense (profit)

1,962,430,512

1,754,217,881

Depreciation

41,983,365,939

40,933,131,718

Depreciation of investment property

690,089,975

733,467,097

Amortization of intangible assets

423,681,546

521,626,836

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

3,303,571,153|

3,064,646,426

Depreciation of biological assets for
productiot

19,483,296,179

18,736,714,460

Loss on valuation of inventories (reversal)

335,054,232

(99,422,019)

Loss on valuation of derivatives

196,080,000

928,109,519

Gain on valuation of derivatives

(469,200,000)

(196,080,000)

Loss on transaction of derivatives

19,642,581,000

3,470,354,000

Gain on transaction of derivatives

(19,418,493,646

(6,449,431,000)

Retirement benefits

7,216,746,284

6,755,470,371

Loss on disposal of PP&E 160,676,144 342,640,474
Gains on disposal of PP&E (278,217,547) (72,887,387)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 3,000 -
Loss on disposal of investment property 276,301,786 -

Gain on disposal of investment property

(422,849,459)

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets

(61,634,067)

(50,979,791)

Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiar

share 94,214,620 -

Bad debt expenses (193,718,988) (80,989,995)
Interest income (2,802,357,760) (3,813,513,444)
Interest expense 21,299,334,910 17,887,791,995
Import guarantee fees - (34,745,100)
Changes in fair value of biological assets 668,359,761 (9,649,571,878)

held for consumptic

Impairment loss on PP&E

5,646,577,836|

Reversal of impairment loss on investment

subsidiary share:

in

(13,020,425,170

Gain on foreign currency translation

(2,487,306,850)

(7,638,726,381)

Loss on foreign currency translation

547,903,532

2,532,807,067

Greenhouse gas emission liabilities

(13,193,660)

(108,549,700)

l(iiat)br;ltirtlit;lsjtlon to provisions for contingent loss ) 17.196,000,004
(3) Changes in net working capital (13,629,873,907 (23,899,806,783
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables (18,191,822,588 (16,061,057,522
Decrease (increase) in other receivables 1,274,939,866 (717,146,373)
Decrease (increase) in inventories (1,337,612,665) (26,359,331,812
Decrease (increase) in biological assets fo 9,694,733,307 (797.659.292)

consumptio

Decrease (increase) in other assets

(1,013,843,684)

(688,267,482)

Increase (decrease) in trade payables

4,400,182,515

28,541,463,294

Increase (decrease) in other payables

(440,433,509)

1,848,526,037

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

(1,448,572,314)

(1,297,574,860)

Payment of severance pay

(6,960,435,790)

(7,808,406,320)

Decrease (increase) in plan assets

392,990,955

(560,352,453)

(4) Receipt of interest

2,315,394,004|

2,836,415,935

(5) Payment of interest

(20,490,080,662

(16,212,686,123

(6) Income tax refund (payment amount)

(1,852,404,311)

(55,181,776)




Il. Cash flow from investing activities

(21,808,181,092

(133,560,194,918

Decrease in short-term financial instrument

s  109,060,380,643

139,465,000,000

Increase in short-term financial instruments

(58,425,000,000

(202,588,500,000

Decrease in short-term loans

50,000,000

Decrease in short-term security deposits

16,966,475,361]

52,780,760

Increase in short-term security deposits

(23,704,501,326

(8,772,440,902)

Decrease in long-term financial instruments

3 1,037,160,512

Increase in long-term financial instruments

(13,346,807,966

(6,261,410,300)

Decrease in long-term deposit 1,784,480,000 2,277,669,000
Increase in long-term deposit (391,118,000) (216,910,000)
Decrease in other financial instruments 1,325,000 3,510,000
Increase in investment in subsidiary shares - (6,000,000,000)
Decrease in investment in subsidiary shares 60,855,380 -

Disposal of investment property 796,100,000 -

Disposal of PP&E 389,312,722 138,612,345
Disposal of intangible assets 127,000,000 22,000,000

Acquisition of PP&E

(40,510,092,358

(32,032,561,154

Acquisition of intangible assets

(101,626,800)

(137,082,130)

Increase in biological assets for production

(17,440,834,260

(19,560,862,537

Settlement of derivatives

1,888,710,000

1. Cash flow from financing activitie

(61,048,807,827

54,053,896,052

Increase in short-term borrowings

228,940,448,472

400,189,810,749

Repayment of short-term borrowings

(319,391,987,406

(327,923,440,692

Repayment of current portion of long-term

e (10,690,000,000 (10,748,220,000
liabilities

Increase in long-term borrowings 45,000,000,000 13,344,000,000
Increase in bonds - 19,939,780,000
Repayment of current bonds - (35,000,000,000

Payment of dividends

(2,123,743,640)

(3,185,615,460)

Repayment of lease liabilities

(2,783,525,253)

(2,562,418,545)

IV. Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash

and cash equivaler

7,160,540

(64,262,844)

V. Increase in cash and cash equivalerts <

o+ 1 + IV)

(8,673,786,544)

(38,878,260,712

\VI. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of]

the yea

49,176,877,521]

88,055,138,233

\VIl. Cash and cash equivalents at end of the y

ear

40,503,090,977|

49,176,877,521

The accompanied notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Harim Corporation

1. General
(1) Overview of the Company

Harim Corporation (hereinafter referred to the “Qramy”) was established by spin-off of Harim Corfiana
(before spin-off) into Harim Holdings (Surviving tityg after spin-off) to engage in the investmentision and
the new corporation, the Company to engage in tiicken processing and fee manufacturing businegsavi
record date of January 1, 2011.

After the spin-off, the shares of the Company Hasen re-listed on the KOSDAQ market in May 2, 2aad
the major shareholders as of Dec 31, 2023 conisisaom Holdings Co., Ltd. (57.37%) and others.

2. Basis of financial statements preparation

The financial statements have been prepared inrdacoe with Korean International Financial Repaytin

Standards (“K-IFRS”) by adopting the Internation&tcounting Standards Committee's International
Accounting Standards Committee, as prescribed ticlar5(1)(1) of the Act on External Audit of Stock

Companies, etc.

The financial statements of the Company are tharaép financial statements pursuant to the No. Hd2i7e
Statements of Korea Accounting Standards and pregdime investment assets by accounting standasssib
on the direct investment in shares not based dompggince and net assets.

The financial statements of the Company were amatdoy the board of directors on February 13, 20&# a
expected to be approved finally at the general imgeif shareholders on March 27, 2024.

(1) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared ohasis of historical cost, except for the major geimthe
statement of financial position listed below.

(D Financial assets measured at fair value
@ Biological assets for consumption measured awfaire less the sales cost

@ Defined benefit liability which is the present walof defined benefit liability less the fair valoé plan
assets



(2) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Compdraye been prepared in functional currency, whidhescurrency of
the main economic environment in which the operatiof the Company are conducted. The financial
statements of the Company are prepared and reporkarean Won, which is the functional and preagaoh
currency.

(3) Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumggion

The preparation of financial statements requirssimptions and estimates about the future, and reamet
is required to make judgments in applying the antiag policies of the Company. Estimates and assomg
are continuously evaluated, taking into accound@aably foreseeable future events, based on ppstierce
and the current situation. The results of accogrgstimates are rarely identical to actual restlitss carrying
significant risks that may lead to material adjuests.

Management's judgments and estimates of signifidaksé that may affect the adjustments to the aagry
amounts of assets and liabilities in the next fige@r are as follows. Additional information omgmsificant
judgments and estimates for some items is includéake individual notes.

(D Recoverable amount of cash-generating units

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unitschwis used to assess whether impairment exists, is
determined based on the calculation of their valuese.

@ Realizability of deferred tax assets

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is veadeat each reporting period end, and the carrgimgunt
of deferred tax assets is reduced if it is no loqebable that sufficient taxable income will bengrated to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets todo®vered.

@ Fair value of biological assets

The fair value of biological assets that are rdéd in an active market is primarily determinadgisaluation
techniques. The Company makes judgments on thetisel@nd determination of various valuation tegueis
based on significant market conditions as of ttet@rthe reporting period.



3. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(1) Adopted and amended standards and interpresatp the Company

The Company has applied the following new and amérslandards and interpretations for the accounting
periods beginning on January 1, 2023.

O Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001 ‘Presentation of Riial Statements’ — Disclosure of ‘Accounting
Policies’

It defines and requires disclosure of material acdéognpolicy information (which means the level of
information that, when considered together witheoihformation contained in the financial statersemtould
influence the decision-making of the primary usefshe financial statements). This amendment has no
significant impact on the financial statements

2 Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001 ‘Presentation of Ririal Statements’ — Disclosure of profit or lossnfr
valuation of financial liabilities with exerciseipe adjustment conditions

It requires disclosure of the carrying amount andedlarofit or loss of financial liabilities thateaclassified
as financial liabilities, in whole or in part, whenfinancial instrument has an exercise price ithaidjusted
based on changes in the issuer's stock pilibes amendment has no significant impact on thanfoml
statements

@ Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1008 ‘Changes and Errérsazounting Policy and Accounting Estimates’ -
Definition of ‘Accounting Estimates’

It defines accounting estimates and clarifies hmehtange and distinguish accounting policiégss amendment
has no significant impact on the financial statetmien

@ Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1012 ‘Corporate Income ' FaReferred income tax on assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

The initial recognition exception for transactianswhich assets or liabilities are first recognizezs been
amended to include the requirement that the tréiosadoes not give rise to additions or deductioms
temporary differences at the time of transactibims amendment has no significant impact on thaniomal
statements.

(® Adoption of K-IFRS No. 1117 ‘Insurance Contracts’

K-IFRS No. 1117 ‘Insurance Contracts’ replaces R¥No. 1104 ‘Insurance Contracts’. It requires the
measurement of insurance liabilities using all cielvs estimated and discounted at rates refleatingent
assumptions and risks at the reporting date arayrgzing revenue on an accrual basis reflectingséreices
provided to policyholders (insurance coverage) eddtal year. Also, investment components
(surrender/maturity refunds) paid to policyholdergardless of insurance events are excluded frgaramce
income, and insurance income and investment incaraeseparately presented so that users of financial
information can identify the sources of profit os$.This adoption has no significant impact on theriiial
statements

® K-IFRS No. 1012 ‘Corporate Income Tax’ — ‘Interioaial Tax Reform — Pillar 2 Model Rules’

The amendment temporarily relaxes the accountiegtrmient for deferred income tax arising from the
implementation of the Pillar 2 Model Rules, whicefarm the international taxation of multinational
corporations and requires disclosure of the cuirerime tax effects and other related matt€hés adoption
has no significant impact on the financial statetsien



(2) Newly adopted and amended standards and ietatfans not applied by the Company

The following newly adopted or published standangid interpretations have not been applied, aséfferctive
dates have not yet arrived.

@O Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001 ‘Presentation of Biial Statements’ - Classification of Liabilities a
Current/Non-current, Non-current liabilities witbvenants

Liabilities are classified as current or non-cutrieased on the existence of substantive rightseaénd of the
reporting period, and the possibility of exercisthg rights to defer settlement or management ¢apexs are
not considered. Also, the settlement of liabilitiesludes the transfer of equity instruments, buxicludes
cases where the option to settle with equity imsgmts in a compound financial instrument meetsiéfimition

of an equity instrument and is recognized separditem the liability. In addition, covenants recqedr to be
complied with by the Company after the end of thporting period do not affect the classificationsath
liabilities, and if liabilities that are required tomply with the covenants within 12 months after reporting
period is classified as non-current liabilitiess thformation on the risk that the liabilities mag repaid within
12 months after the reporting period shall be dsetl. This amendment is to be applied from thealfigear
commencing after January 1, 2024, and the earlgtaaiois permitted. The Company is reviewing th@act
on the financial statement due to this amendment.

@ Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1007 ‘Statements of Calsiwg, K-IFRS No. 1107 ‘Financial Instruments:
Disclosure’ — Disclosure of information on Supplk@nancing Agreement

In case of applying supplier financing agreemdms, information on supplier financing agreement Ishal
disclosed to enable users of the financial statésressess the impact of supplier financing agreeomethe
Company’s liabilities, cash flows and liquidity kisxposure. This amendment is to be applied fraarfittal
year commencing after January 1, 2024, and thg addption is permitted. The Company is reviewing t
impact on the financial statement due to this anrerd.

@ Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1116 ‘Lease’ — Lease ligbarising from sale & leaseback transactions

In case of subsequently measuriegse liability arising from sale and leasebachde&tions|ease payments
or amended lease payments are determined in a minateloes not recognize gains or losses relatehlet

right of use held by the seller-less&bis amendment is to be applied from the fiscal y@emmencing after
January 1, 2024, and the early adoption is perchifibe Company is reviewing the impact on the faian

statement due to this amendment.

@ Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001 ‘Presentation of Ririal Statements’ — Disclosure of virtual assets

It defines additional disclosure requirements faitees that hold virtual assets, hold virtual assm behalf of
customers or issue virtual assets. This amendmmémbe applied from the fiscal year commencingralanuary
1, 2024, and the early adoption is permitted. Then@any is reviewing the impact on the financiatestent
due to this amendmerithis adoption has no significant impact on theriirial statements.



4. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by iempany in preparation of its financial statemednts
included below. The accounting policies set oubwehave been applied consistently to all periogés@nted
in these financial statements, except for thosdisttosed in Note 3.

(1) Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates

The financial statements of the Company are tharagpfinancial statements pursuant to the K-IFRS1927.
In relation to the investment assets in subsidaai®ed affiliates, the Company uses the cost mgibhogliant to
the K-IFRS No. 1027. Meanwhile, the dividends reedifrom the subsidiaries and affiliates are recaghas
gain or loss at the time of confirming the righttie dividends payments.

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company classifies investment assets with miasiwvithin 3 months from the acquisition dateeash and
cash equivalents. Equity instruments are excludedh fcash equivalents but may be included in cash
equivalents if they are actually cash equivalesiish as preferred shares with a fixed redemptioe alad a
short period from the acquisition date to redenmptiate.

(3) Biological assets
(D Biological assets for consumption

Biological assets for consumption are measurecitair value which is the fair value less estirdatest of
sale at the time of initial recognition and at &mel of each reporting period. In addition, cropsvésted from
biological assets are measured and evaluated atlaie less costs to sell at the time of harvest.

Valuation gains and losses arising from changethénfair value less costs to sell of biologicaleassfor
consumption are reflected in profit or loss in piegiod in which they arise.

@ Biological assets for production

Biological assets are measured at the acquisitimst tess accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss.

Bearer biological assets are depreciated usingtth&ght-line method over the useful life of 10 rtita which
is the breeding period, with a residual value ©62£0") from the time when they can be spawned.



(4) Inventories

The unit cost of inventories is determined by thesg average method and acquisition cost includeshpse
costs, conversion costs and other costs necessgsepare inventories in a ready-to-use conditiired
manufacturing overhead costs included in the cbgraducts or work-in-process are allocated basethe
normal operating level of production facilities.

Inventories are measured at the lower of acquisdast or net realizable value. Loss on valuatidnwentories

written down to net realizable value and all lossespoilage are recognized as expenses in thedgarhich

the write-down or spoilage occurred. Reversal 8§ lon valuation of inventories due to an increagbée net
realizable value of inventories is deducted fromabst of sales for inventories recognized as perese in the
period in which the reversal occurred.

(5) Non-derivative financial assets
@D Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued digdljnrecognized when they are originated. Athet financial
assets are initially recognized when the Compangimes a party to the contractual provisions ofrtegument.

A financial asset excluding trade receivables withesignificant financing component is initiallyeasured at
fair value plus, for an item not at financial asseeasured at fair value through profit or losmdaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition issue. A trade receivable without a significaimahcing
component is initially measured at the transaqpioce.

@ Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is cléissi as measured at amortized cost, debt instrismaetaisured
at fair value through other comprehensive incongglitg instruments measured at fair value throudteot
comprehensive income or financial assets measufad &alue through profit or loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequetitefp initial recognition unless the Company ctesgs
business model for managing financial assets, iclwbase all affected financial assets are redladsin the
first day of the reporting period following the ¢l in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized castriets both of the following conditions and i designated
as at fair value through profit or loss.

- it is held within a business model whose objexis/to hold assets to collect contractual cashsl@and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified gldte cash flows that are solely payments of pralcgnd
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Adebt instrument is measured at fair value throothler comprehensive income if it meets both oféiewing
conditions and is not designated as at fair vdioeugh profit or loss.

- it is held within a business model whose objexts/achieved by both collection contractual césivg and
selling financial assets, and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified slatecash flows that are solely payments of priaicgnd
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment thgnhot held for trading, the Company may irrevdgadect
to present subsequent changes in the investmaitgalue in other comprehensive income. Howeveceo
elected, it cannot be cancelled. This electionaslenon an investment-by-investment basis.



All financial assets not classified as measurednadrtized cost of fair value through other compnsie
income as described above are measured at fag tradough profit or loss. This includes all derivatfinancial
assets. On initial recognition, the Company magvcably designate a financial asset that othemuisets the
requirements to be measured at amortized costfairatalue through other comprehensive incometdaia
value through profit or loss if doing so eliminatassignificantly reduces an accounting mismatelt thould
otherwise arise. However, once elected, it canaatamcelled.

The Company evaluates the objectives of businesiehield at the portfolio level of financial asskéecause
it best reflects how the business is managed afodniation is provided to management. Such inforomati
considers followings:

- Accounting policies and objectives specifiedtfoe portfolio and the actual operation of thesdcjesd which
include management’s strategies focused on obtamimominal interest income, maintaining a ceraiel of
interest rate, matching the duration of the liiedi to finance the financial asset with the doratof the
financial asset, and outflow or realization of éxpected cash flow through sale of the assets

- Method of evaluating the performance of finanaskets held in the business model and reportiag th
evaluation to key management

- Risks that affect the performance of the busimeadel (and financial assets held in the business$eih and
how those risks are managed

- Compensation method for management (for exarbpkeed on the fair value of the assets under maragem
or based on the contractual cash flows received)

- Frequency, amount, timing, reason, and foreddfsttore sales activities of financial assets ia gast period

For this purpose, a transaction that transfersantiial asset to a third party, which does not ityu&br
derecognition, is not considered as a sale.

Portfolios of financial assets that meet the deéiniof trading or whose performance is evaluatedcadair
value basis are measured at fair value througtit pmoloss.

Financial assets: Assessment of whether contracashl flows consist only of principal and interest.

“Principal” is defined as the fair value of a firga asset on initial recognition. Interest corsadtconsideration
for the time value of money, consideration for ¢hedit risk associated with the principal balance specified
period and other basic lending risks and consiggrafor costs (e.g., liquidity risk and operatoagts) as well
as profits.

When assessing whether contractual cash flows stswely of principal and interest, the Companysiters
the contractual terms of the instrument. If a ficilahasset contains a contractual condition thainges the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows, it sllolbe determined whether the contractual cash fithas
would arise over the life of the instrument becaosthe contractual condition consist solely of payt of
principal and interest.

In evaluating this, the Company considers:
- Conditional circumstances that change the amoutining of cash flows
- Provisions to adjust contractual nominal interagts including floating interest rate charactess
- Early repayment characteristics and maturity msittn characteristics

- Contractual conditions limiting the Company'siti@ao cash flows from specific assets (e.g., haouese)



If the early redemption amount substantially représ the outstanding principal and interest over th
outstanding principal and includes reasonable cosgt®n for early termination of the contract, taaly
redemption characteristic is consistent with thediions for paying the principal and interest ospecific
date.

In addition, for financial assets acquired at aicant discount or premium to the contractual mhamount,
the early redemption amount substantially represtrg contractual nominal value and contractuarést
accrued (but not paid) (in this case, it is neagsfea early termination of the contract). If tharfvalue of the
early redemption characteristic is insignificanttia¢ time of initial recognition of a financial &sit is
determined that these conditions are satisfied.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and qrédigs

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at fagt itincome including
measured at FVF interest or dividend income is recognized in profitoss
These assets are subsequemtgasured at amortized cost using
Financial assets | effective interest method. Amortized cost is redlbg impairment loss
measured at amortizedinterest income, gain/loss on foreign currencysiaion and impairmen
cost losses are recognized in profit or loss. Gain®ssds on derecognitiare
recognized in profit or los
These assets are subsequently measured at fa@. \iatarest income i
calculated using the effective interest method gaid or loss on foreigt
Debt instruments | currency translation and impairmdosses are recognized in profit or lo
measured at FVOCI | Other net income is recognized in other comprelrerisicome. Gain o
loss on derecognition is reclassified to profitlass from accumulate
other comprehensive incor
Theseassets are subsequently measured at fair valuedeDids are
Equity instruments | recognized in profit or loss unless there is aniexpecovery of the cos
measured at FVOCI | of the investment. Other net gains and losses eregnized in othe
comprehensive income and are never reclad to profit or loss

(@ Derecognition

The Company derecognizes an asset when the rightcmive the cash flows of the financial asset is
extinguished or the contractual right to receivedhsh flows of a financial asset is transferratisafstantially

all of the risks and rewards of ownership of tlaasferred financial asset are transferred, or trefany retains

or transfers substantially all of the risks andasdg of ownership in case the financial assetsarainder
control.

If the Company transfers assets recognized intdteraent of financial position but retains mosthaf risks
and rewards of ownership of the transferred asgetgransferred assets are not derecognized.

@ Offset

The Company offsets financial assets and liakdlitiely when the Company currently has a legallpefable
right of set-off against the recognized assets lamlities and intends to settle the differencesettle the
liabilities simultaneously with the realization thie assets. and it is presented as a net amotire Btatement
of financial position.



(6) Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instrumeathedge its foreign exchange and interest ratesexps.
Embedded derivatives are accounted for separatdlgeparated from the main contract when the nuaitract
is not a financial asset and certain requiremenatsreet.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valungtially. After initial recognition, it is measudeat fair value
and changes are generally recognized in profioss.|

The Company designates certain derivatives anddeoinative financial liabilities as hedging instrants to
hedge the volatility of cash flows related to fetdorecast transactions that are highly likely tizeafrom
fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates.

At the inception of the hedge, the Company docum#re objectives and strategies for risk managefoent
the hedge. The Company documents the economidoredatp between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument, including whether changes in the céshsf of the hedged item and the hedging instruraeat
expected to offset each other.

Hedges directly affected by interest rate benchmafidem.

For the purpose of evaluating whether there isc@mamic relationship between the hedged item(s)thad
hedging instrument(s), the Company assumes thaethehmark interest rate is not altered as a reSinterest
rate benchmark reform.

For a cash flow hedge of a forecast transactienCibimpany assumes that the benchmark intereswithteot
be altered as a result of interest rate benchmefidem for the purpose of assessing whether thecéste
transaction is highly probable and presents ansxgato variations in cash flows that could ultietaiaffect
profit or loss. In determining whether a previoudfsignated forecast transaction in a discontimaesti flow
hedge is still expected to occur, the Company assuat the interest rate benchmark cash flowgdatad
as a hedge will not be altered as a result ofésterate benchmark reform. The Company will ceaspply
the specific policy for assessing the economidimahip between the hedged item and the hedgstguiment.

- to a hedged item or hedging instrument when tieetainty arising from interest rate benchmarknmefis
no longer present with respect to the timing amdaimount of the interest rate benchmark-basedftzagh
of the respective item or instrument or

- when the hedging relationship is discontinued.

For its highly probable assessment of the hedgen, ithe Company will no longer apply the specifitiqy
when the uncertainty arising from interest ratedbemark reform about the timing and the amount efitberest
rate benchmark-based future cash flows of the hkdgen is no longer present, or when the hedging
relationship is discontinued.

(D Cash flow hedging

When a derivative is designated as a cash flowihgdgstrument, the effective portion of the chamgé¢he
fair value of the derivative is recognized in otbemprehensive income and accumulated as hedgiegvee
The effective part of the change in the fair vadii¢he derivatives recognized in other comprehensicome
is limited to the cumulative change in the fairuebf the hedged item, determined based on themrealue,
from the inception of the hedge. Ineffective parthanges in the fair value of derivatives areogeized
immediately in profit or loss.

The Company designates only changes in the faievafithe spot component of a forward exchange#etion
as a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedgindiogighip. Changes in the fair value of the forwenthponent
of a forward exchange transaction are separatalguated as hedging costs and recognized in theofost
hedging in equity.



If the hedged forecast transaction is subsequeatiggnized in a non-financial asset such as invierstothe
accumulated hedge reserve and the cost of the rigedge included directly in the initial cost of then-
financial asset when the non-financial asset isgeized.

For other hedged transactions, the accumulatedrigdeserves and the hedging cost are reclassdipdofit
or loss in the same period or in the period in White hedged expected future cash flows affecitpofoss.

Hedging accounting is discontinued prospectivelyemwkhe hedging no longer meets the criteria or vithen
hedging instrument is sold, extinguished, termic&@teexercised.

If the non-financial item is a recognized hedgiramsaction, when cash flow hedge accounting iodistued,
the accumulated hedge reserve and the cost oktihgirig remains in equity items until the non-finahtem

is initially recognized and is included in the cothe non-financial item. In the case of a cdstvhedge that
does not fall under these circumstances, the amsuneclassified as hedge reserve by reclassibicati
adjustment during the period in which the hedgedréuexpected cash flows affect profit or loss #redcost is
reclassified as profit or loss.

When the hedged future cash flows are no longeea®d to occur, the accumulated cash flow hedgaves
and the cost of the hedge are immediately recladdib profit or loss.

@ Net investment hedging

When a derivative or non-derivative financial litiis designated as a hedging instrument fortamestment

in a foreign operation, the effective part of theuege in the fair value of the hedging instrumentfderivative
instrument, and the effective part of the gain asslon foreign currency translation for a non-dsiie
instrument is recognized in other comprehensivenme and presented as transaction reserve in equity.
Ineffective parts are recognized immediately infipar loss.

The amount recognized in other comprehensive indesmexlassified to profit or loss through reclésation
adjustment at the time of disposal of the foreigaration site.

(7) Impairment for financial assets

(D Financial instruments and contract assets

The Company recognizes allowance for expectedtdasties on the following assets:
- financial assets measured at amortized cost

With the exception of the following financial assetvhich are measured in 12-month expected cresht the
Company measures the allowance for loss at an armeguivalent to lifetime expected credit loss.

- debt securities that are determined to have leditrisk at thedporting date; and

- other debt securities and ban k balances for lwhredit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurringen the
expected life of the financial instrument) has inateased significantly since initial recognition.

The loss allowance for trade receivables and condissets is always measured at the amount equitaléhe
lifetime expected credit loss (ECL).

When determining whether the credit risk of a fitiahasset has increased significantly since inigieognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considesdoredole and supportable information that is relesad
available without undue cost or effort. This inagdoth quantitative and qualitative informatiod analysis,
based on the Company’s historical experience afwdnied credit assessment and including forward itapk
information.



The Company assumes that the credit risk of firdssets increases significantly when the numbmrerdue
days exceeds 90 days.

The Company considers a financial asset to befauttevhen:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obliigas to the Company in full, without recourse bg Company
to actions such as realizing security

- the number of overdue days of financial asseteeds 365 days

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all gibte default events over the expected life ofnariicial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that resulbf default events that are possible within thertihths
after the reporting date (or a shorter periodeéf éixpected life of the instrument is less than batis).

The maximum period considered when estimating EGlthe maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk.

@ Measurement of expected credit losses

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of cremfises. Credit losses are measured as the predeatof all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between thsh dlows due to the entity in accordance with thetact and
the cash flows that the Company expects to receis@).s are discounted at the effective interest dditthe
financial asset.

@ Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whethacial assets measured at amortized cost abd d
instrument measured at fair value through othergreirensive income are credit-impaired. A finanagset is
‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that l@adetrimental impact on the estimated future dlasts of
the financial asset have occurred.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or giumancial assets are impaired includes:
- significant financial difficulty of the issuer tworrower
- a breach of contract, such as a default or dedinqy in interest or principal payments

- the lender, for economic or legal reasons redatim the borrower's financial difficulty, grantirtg the
borrower a concession that the lender would naretise consider

- it becoming probable that the borrower will erftankruptcy or other financial reorganization
- the disappearance of an active market for timainicial asset because of financial difficulties
@ Presentation of allowance for ECL in the stateneéffinancial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured attes®d cost are deducted from the gross carryinguat
of the assets.

B Write-off

Afinancial asset is written off when there is pagsonable expectation of recovery of all or paitisafontractual
cash flows. For individual customers, the Companmiyew off the carrying amount based on past expeée
with the recovery of similar assets, and for cogp@rcustomers, the timing and amount of each wfitere
evaluated individually by assessing whether ther ieasonable expectation for recovery. The Coynpas
no expectation that the write-off will be signifitdy recovered. However, financial assets thatvartgen off



could still be subject to enforcement activitie®mder to comply with the Company’s proceduresémovery
of amounts due.

(8) Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E)

Property, plant and equipment are initially meaduaad recognized at cost. The cost of propertytdad
equipment includes costs directly attributable imding the asset to the location and conditionessary to
operate it in the manner intended by managementrenestimated cost of dismantling, removing trsetssor
restoring the site.

After initial recognition, property, plant and epguient is carried at cost less accumulated depiaciand
accumulated impairment losses.

Among PP&E, land is not depreciated. Other propgignt and equipment are amortized using thegstrai
line method, which best reflects the expected cmpgion patterns of future economic benefits inhenerthe
asset over the useful life as shown below for tm@wnt obtained by deducting the residual value fthen
acquisition cost of the asset.

If the cost of a part of property, plant and equepinis significant compared to the total cost & ginoperty,
plant and equipment, such a part is separatelyedeged.

Gain or loss on the derecognition of property, ptard equipment is determined as the differencedmat the
net sale amount and the carrying amount, and ffexetice is recognized in profit or loss.

Estimated useful lives for the years ended Dece@bg2023 and 2022 are as follows.

Account Estimated useful life Account Estimated useful life

Building 20 ~ 40 years Facility and equipment 12 years
Structures 20 ~ 40 years Vehicles 5 years
Machinery 8 ~ 12 years Others 5 years

At the end of each reporting period, the Compameyxaenines the residual value, useful life and deatiea
method of an asset, and if it is judged appropt@athange it as a result of the review, it istedas a change
in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only whes firobable that future economic benefits relatedhe
expenditure will flow to the Company.

(9) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost,after initial recognition, the carrying amousirecognized
at cost less accumulated amortization and accuetllatpairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortized using the strdiightmethod over their useful lives of 5 years wathesidual
value of zero (“0”) from the time they are availalibr use. However, as there are no foreseeabits limthe
periods over which club memberships are expectdxk tavailable for use, this intangible asset igmeined
as having an indefinite useful life and not ametiz

Amortization periods and the amortization methadritangible assets with finite useful lives aggiewed at
the end of each reporting period. Intangible asgetsreated as change in accounting change ibojsep to
change by reviewing whether the evaluation thatubeful lives of intangible assets are indefiniel & is



determined that the change is reasonable.

Subsequent expenses are capitalized only wherutbeefeconomic benefits belonging to the specifisea
concerned increase, and other expenses, inclutiagnally generated goodwill and brand names, xgreresed
immediately upon occurrence.

(10) Government grants

Government grants are recognized only when the @osnpas reasonable assurance that it will recéige t
grant and comply with the conditions incidentattte grant.

The Company receives a government subsidy subjéee tbasic condition that it be used to acquirgastruct
a non-current asset. When calculating the carrgingunt of the asset, the government subsidy isaedand
recognized in profit or loss over the useful lifetlte depreciable asset.

(11) Investment property

Property held to earn rentals or for capital apjt@n or both is classified as investment propdrtyestment
property is measured initially at its cost. Trangaccosts are included in the initial measurem8obsequently,
investment property is carried at depreciated lesstany accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are recognized in the carryingiaimad investment property at cost or, if approgias
separate items if it is probable that future ecordrenefits associated with the item will flow teetCompany
and the cost of the item can be measured reli@hb/.carrying amount of the replaced part is deneizegl. The
costs of the day-to-day servicing are recognizeurdfit or loss as incurred.

Among investment property, land is not depreciatedt] investment property excluding land, is dejtteci
using the straight-line method over 20 ~ 40 yeeredding on the economic useful life.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualieslare reviewed at the end of each reporting alate
adjusted, if appropriate. The change is accourdedd a change in an accounting estimate.

(12) Impairment for non-financial assets

All non-financial assets, except for assets ariingn employee benefits, biological assets, invees) and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end bfreporting period for any indications of impairrhamd, if

there is any such indication, the recoverable amolthe asset is estimated. However, goodwill iatehgible

assets that have indefinite useful lives or thatrant yet available for use, irrespective of whethere is any
indication of impairment, are tested for impairmantually by comparing their recoverable amourthe&r

carrying amount.

Management estimates the recoverable amount ohdimidual asset. If it is impossible to measure the
individual recoverable amount of an asset, then agament estimates the recoverable amount of cash-
generating unit (“CGU”). The recoverable amounainfasset or CGU is the greater of its value-inauskits

fair value less costs to sell. The value-in-ussstemated by applying a pre-tax discount ratendiddcts current
market assessments of the time value of moneyhandsks specific to the asset or CGU for whiclinested
future cash flows have not been adjusted, to tlimated future cash flows expected to be genetayetthe
asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryingoammt of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverafubeifat.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.



(13) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contcaciveys the right to control the use of an idesdifisset for a
period of time in exchange for considerations.

@ As alessee

At inception or reassessment of a contract thatato® a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease andaase component on the basis of their relativedstdone
prices. However, the Company accounts for the sasd component related to the lease componersiagla
lease component by applying the practical expedteattdoes not separate the non-lease componergdbr
estate leases.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset aads lliability at the lease commencement daterifhe
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, whigimgrises the initial amount of the lease liabidjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commenteiai, plus any initial direct costs incurred amd
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the Wydgrasset of to restore the underlying assehersite on
which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently deprec@teal straight-line basis from the commencement teatiee
end of the lease term, unless the lease transfersrehip of the underlying asset to the Companthbyend of
the lease term or the cost of the right-of-usetasdlects that the Company will exercise a purehgstion. In
that case the right-of-use asset will be depregiateer the useful life of the underlying asset, ahhis
determined on the same basis as that of propedtg@uipment. In addition, the right-of-use asspetisodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjufstedertain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at theegent value of the lease payments that are notgidide
commencement date, discounted using the intertstimgplicit in the lease or, if that rate cannotrbadily
determined the Company’s incremental borrowing i@emerally, the Company uses its incremental ong
rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowirtg &y obtaining interest rates from various externa
sources and makes certain adjustments to refledetins of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement oé#selliability comprise the followings:
- fixed payments (including the fixed lease payragnt

- variable lease payments that depend on an indaxate, which is measured the index or rater@staate)
of the lease commencement date initially

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- exercise price under a purchase option that tregany is reasonably certain to exercise, leasm@ais in
an optional renewal period if the Company is reabbncertain to exercise an extension option, awhfiies
for early termination of a lease unless the Compamgasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cestgithe effective interest method. A lease lispik a change
in the future lease payments due to a change ind&x or rate (interest rate) and remeasured ieveat of a
change in the amount expected to be paid underethdual value guarantee, a change in the evafuafio
whether to exercise purchase, extension or termmaptions, or a change in the actual fixed |lgzsgment.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the relaggu-of-use asset is adjusted. Of the carryingam of the
right-of-use asset decreases to zero (“0”), theeemurement amount is recognized in profit or loss.

In the statement of financial position, right-ousssets that do not meet the definition of investrproperty
are presented separately from tangible assetdeasd liabilities are presented as ‘other finariibilities'.



Short-term leases and small-value underlying deases

The Company has elected not to recognize rightsefassets and lease liabilities for leases of lalevassets
and short-term leases not exceeding 12 monthsydimg IT equipment. The Company recognizes theeleas
payments associated with these leases as an expeas&raight-line basis over the lease term.

(2 As alessor

At inception or the effective date of a modificatithat contains a lease component, the Companyaidis the
consideration in the contract to each lease compamrethe basis of their relative stand-alone gtice

As a lessor, the Company determines at lease inoephether each lease is a finance lease or amtmgp
lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an ¢ass#ssment of whether the lease transfers stib#itan
all of the risks and rewards incidental to owngustiithe underlying asset. If this is the casente lease is
a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company considers certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for thempart of the economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it @usofor its interests in the head lease and theease
separately. It assesses the lease classificatiasatb-lease with reference to the right-of-usetasising from
the head lease, not with reference to the underlgisset. If a head lease is a short-term leasenitchvthe
Company applies the exemption described above,itlotassifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease awngs, then the Company applies K-IFRS No. 1115 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Company applies the derecognition and impaitmeguirements in K-IFRS No. 1109 to the net innesit
in the lease. The Company further regularly reviestimated unguaranteed residual values useddulatihg
the gross investment of the lease.

The Company recognizes lease payments received apderating leases as income on a straight-linis basr
the lease term.

(14) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Company classifies non-derivative financiabiliies into financial liabilities measured at faralue
through profit or loss or financial liabilities meaed at amortized cost in accordance with thetanbs of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions ofrfaaal liabilities and recognizes financial liab#$ in the
statement of financial position when the Compargobees a party to the contractual provisions ofitfencial
liability.

(D Financial liabilities measured at fair value thgbuprofit or loss

A financial liability is classified as at fair vaduthrough profit or loss if it is classified asdébr-trading, it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on inigglagnition. Subsequent to initial recognition, finil liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measurethia value, and changes therein are recognizqatafit or
loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cosiattare directly attributable to the acquisitioe egcognized in
profit or loss as incurred.

@ Other financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities other than &ncial liabilities measured at fair value througbfip or loss
are classified as financial liabilities measuredaietortized cost. At the date of initial recognitidmancial
liabilities measured at amortized cost are measatréadr value after deducting transaction cosas déine directly



attributable to the acquisition. Financial liabdg measured at amortized cost are measured atizedocost
using the effective interest method subsequentiyitial recognition.

(@ Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability witsrcontractual obligations are discharged or eled, or
expired. The Company also derecognizes a finahalzlity when its terms are modified and the célslvs of
the modified liability are substantially differer, which case a new financial liability based be tmodified
terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difence between the carrying amount extinguishedtlaad
consideration paid (including any non-cash assatssterred or liabilities assumed) is recognizegrifit or
loss.

(15) Employee benefits
D Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee berthfitsare due to be settled within 12 months alftereind of
the period in which the employees render the réla@vice. When an employee has rendered serviteto
Company during an accounting period, the Compaipgrizes the undiscounted amount of short-term
employee benefits expected to be paid in exchaowghdit service as profit or loss.

@ Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits include empldyerefits that are settled beyond 12 months afeeetid
of the period in which the employees render thateel service, and are calculated at the preseme vdlthe
amount of future benefit that employees have eameeturn for their service in the current ancpperiods,
less the fair value of any related assets. Anyaalgains and losses are recognized in profioss in the
period in which they arise.

@ Retirement benefit: Defined benefit plan

For defined contribution plans, when an employes eadered service to the Company during a petied,
Company recognizes the contribution payable tofee contribution plan in exchange for that seevis an
accrued expense, after deducting any contributadresady paid. If the contributions already paideed the
contribution due for service before the end ofrégeorting period, the Company recognizes that exassan
asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that theapmegnt will lead to a reduction in future paymentt® cash
refund.

@ Retirement benefits: Defined benefit plans

As of the end of the reporting period, defined iigtiabilities related to defined benefit plansaecognized
by deducting the fair value of plan assets frompitessent value of the defined benefit obligations.

The calculation is performed annually by an indejeen actuary using the projected unit credit meth'dden
the fair value of plan assets exceeds the prestéunt vf the defined benefit obligation, the Compeeopgnizes
an asset, to the extent of the present value dbthkof cumulative any economic benefits ava#ahlthe form
of refunds from the plan or reduction in the futaoatributions to the plan.

Remeasurements of net defined benefit liabilittdsich comprise actuarial gains and losses, therretn plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of teeetaceiling (if any, excluding interest), are @gtaed
immediately in other comprehensive income. The Gmgpdetermines the net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) for theripd by applying the discount rate used to meathaelefined



benefit obligation at the beginning of the annualiqd to the then-net defined benefit liability a8, taking
into account any changes in the net defined beliegiitity (asset) during the period as a resulcotributions
and benefit payments, net interest expense and etpenses related to defined benefit plans amgrezed in
profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or whdaraig curtailed, the resulting change in benéét relates
to past service or the gain or loss in curtailmsntecognized immediately in profit or loss. Then@many
recognizes gains and losses on the settlemendefirred benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

(16) Greenhouse Gases Emission Right

The Company has been accounted for the greenh@sss gmission right and emission liability occigrin
pursuant to the Act on Allocation and Transactiboeenhouse Gas Emission Right, as follows.

(D Emission rights

Greenhouse gas emissions rights consist of thevatioes received free of charge from the governaetthe
ones purchased. the allowances received free ofjelieom the government is measured and recograged
zero (“0") and the cost of the greenhouse gas émnissights includes expenditures arising diref@ttyn the
acquisition and any other costs incurred duringmabrcourse of the acquisition.

Greenhouse gas emissions rights are held by thep&@uwoymto fulfill the legal obligation and recorded a
intangible assets. To the extent that the portidmet submitted to the government within one yeamnfthe end
of reporting period, the greenhouse gas emissimigsr are classified as current assets. Greenhgase
emissions rights recorded as intangible assetisitisdly measured at cost and substantially remeabat cost
less accumulated impairment losses.

Emission rights held for the purpose of performtimg obligation are classified as intangible asadtiaitially
measured at cost and subsequently carried atesssatcumulated impairment losses.

The Company derecognizes an emission right asseb e emission allowance is unusable, disposed or
submitted to government when the future economiefis are no longer expected to be probable.

@ Emission liability

Emission liability is an amount of estimated obligas for emission rights to be submitted to theegoment
for the performing period. The emission liabilisymheasured based on the expected quantity of emifssithe
performing period in excess of emission allowamcpdssession and the unit price for such emissinsrin
the market at the end of the reporting period. &hgssion liability is derecognized when submittedhe
government.

(17) Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are initially recordsing the spot exchange rate between the furatibomrency
and the foreign currency at the date of the traimacAt the end of each reporting period, fore@nrency
monetary items are translated using the closirgg Naiin-monetary items that are measured in termstufrical
cost in a foreign currency are translated usingetkehange rate at the date of the original trarmacNon-
monetary items that are measured at fair valueforeagn currency are translated using the exchaatgeat
the date fair value was initially determined.

All exchange differences arising from the convers@ monetary items are recognized in profit orsjos
excluding foreign exchange differences at the tifreettlement of monetary items, differences inttheslation
of net investments in foreign operations, or défezes in financial liabilities designated as castv hedges.



When gains or losses on non-monetary items aregnéned in other comprehensive income, exchange
components of those gains or losses are recogmzetier comprehensive income. Conversely, whensgai
losses on non-monetary items are recognized intjordbss, exchange components of those gainsssek are
recognized in profit or loss.

(18) Paid-in capital

Common shares are classified as equity, and iner&iheosts directly related to capital transactians
deducted from equity at a net amount reflectingetifects.

When the Company reacquires treasury equity ingnisy these equity instruments are directly dediufctem
equity as treasury stock. No gain or loss is rezmghin profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issaaor
cancellation of treasury equity instruments. WhenG@ompany acquires and holds treasury stock, deraion
paid or received is recognized directly in equity.

(19) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the considerationigenm the contract with the customer. The Company
recognizes revenue when control of a good or setvamsfers to a customer. The characteristicgianiag of
performance obligations in contracts with customgignificant payment terms and related revenuegmition
policies are as follows:

Characteristics of goods or services, tim
of performance obligations, and significe
payment terms

Goods/Service Revenue recognition policy

Chicken meat

Control of fresh meat and processed n
products are transferred when they
stocked atlistribution stores and agenci
and when they are sold (chicks, feed, etc
customers, and are recognized as reven

Revenue was recognized when

product transfers to the customer i
control transfers to the custom
Discounts suchas sales incentives &
deducted from revenue because they

products this point. not correspond to the transaction prict
revenue to the extent that there is a \
high probability that a significant retu
will not occur to the accumulate
revenue
For IT computer maintenance service, | Revenue was recognized over the pe
Computer |service is provided during the contr{in which the services are provided.
maintenance |period, and the service charge tax invoiad
service issued and processed on the last day of

month and recognized as revel

Meanwhile, the Company supplies feed, chicks andtetspecific farms at cost (hereinafter referreds
“Customer-supplies at cost”), purchases additignatbcessed customer-supplies, etc. from thesesfamd
sells them to the outside after additional processf the Company. Since the customer-suppliesost ¢
supplied to specific farms are still controlledthg Company through contracts, they are recograzegksets

of the Company and are treated as payment of fées wnporting processed customer-supplies from such
farms.



(20) Finance income and finance costs
The Company's finance income and finance costsadiecl
- interest income;
- interest expense;
- net gain or loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss;

- foreign currency gain or loss on financial asaetsfinancial liabilities;

Interest income or expense is recognized usingffieetive interest method.

The effective interest method is an interest ta@edccurately matches the present value of futash payments
or receivables, estimated over the expected lifa @hancial instrument, with the total carrying amt of
financial assets or amortized cost of financidlilites.

When calculating interest income or interest expetie effective interest rate is applied to theltoarrying
amount of the asset (if the asset is not impaioedhe amortized cost of the liability. Howeverr fmancial
assets with subsequent impairment after initiabgadtion, interest income is calculated by applyihe
effective interest rate to the amortized cost ef financial assets. If the asset is no longer dansd to be
impaired, interest income is calculated by applyimg effective interest rate to its gross carrydngpunt.

(21) Borrowing costs

The Company capitalizes borrowing costs directlylaitable to the acquisition, construction or protion of
a qualifying asset as part of the cost of thatta§#®er borrowing costs are recognized in expassacurred.
A qualifying asset is an asset that requires atanbal period of time to get ready for its inteddese or sale.
Financial assets and inventories that are manutdtir otherwise produced over a short periodnad tare not
gualifying assets. Assets that are ready for fheénded use or sale when acquired are not quadifgssets.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds sigadlif for the purpose of obtaining a qualifyingsat the
Company determines the amount of borrowing costgbéd for capitalization as the actual borrowingsts
incurred on that borrowing during the period lesg mvestment income on the temporary investmetiase
borrowings. The Company immediately recognizesrdbloerowing costs as an expense. To the extentlikeat
Company borrows funds generally and uses thenh@®ptrpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the gamy
shall determine the amount of borrowing costs lelegfor capitalization by applying a capitalizatite to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization sagdl be the weighted average of the borrowingscos
applicable to the borrowings of the Company thatatstanding during the period, other than bomgaimade
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualify asset. The amount of borrowing costs that the@any
capitalizes during a period shall not exceed thewarhof borrowing costs incurred during that period

(22) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and defaaredurrent tax and deferred tax are recognizguldfit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to art@ss combination, or items recognized directlygoiy or in
other comprehensive income.

@D Current income tax

Current income tax is the expected income tax payabreceivable on the taxable profit or losstfe year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacttiteagnd of the reporting period and any adjustr@max
payable in respect of previous years. The taxatwétps different from the accounting profit foné period
since the taxable profit is calculated excluding thmporary differences, which will be taxable eddctible



in determining taxable profit of future periodsdamon-taxable or non-deductible items from the antiag
profit.

The Company offsets current tax assets and cuartiabilities if, and only if, the Company:

- has a legally enforceable right to set off theogmized amounts, and

- intends either to settle on a net basis, oratize the asset and settle the liability simultarstp
@ Deferred income tax

The measurement of deferred income tax liabilitied deferred tax assets reflects the tax consegsdhat
would follow from the manner in which the Compamypects, at the end of the reporting period, tovecor
settle the carrying amount of its assets and ltasl The Company recognizes a deferred incomdiahiity
for all taxable temporary differences associatdti wivestments in subsidiaries, associates, and yentures,
except to the extent that the Company is able tdrabthe timing of the reversal of the temporaifyedence
and it is probable that the temporary differencé not reverse in the foreseeable future. The Campa
recognizes a deferred income tax asset for dedectdmporary differences arising from investmemts i
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, textent that it is probable that the temporaryedéhice will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxabletmifibe available against which the temporaryatiénce can
be utilized.

A deferred income tax asset is recognized for theytorward of unused tax losses, tax credits auldtible
temporary differences to the extent that it is jpiab that future taxable profit will be availablgainst which
the unused tax losses, tax credits and deducébipdrary differences can be utilized. The futuxalde profit
depends on reversing taxable temporary differentaen there are insufficient taxable temporaryedéhces
to recognize the deferred tax assets completedyptbbability of reversing temporary differencesl dhe
business plans of subsidiaries within the Compaeyansidered in the future taxable income.

Temporary differences relating to right-of-use &ss@d lease liabilities are considered as a singfesaction
for the purposes of recognizing deferred tax.

The carrying amount of a deferred income tax aissetviewed at the end of each reporting period iand
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probdde sufficient taxable profit will be available &llow the
benefit of part or all of that deferred income &sset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are orealsat the tax rates that are expected to apphetperiod

when the asset is realized or the liability isleditbased on tax laws that have been enactedostasuively

enacted by the end of the reporting period. Wheasmeng deferred income tax assets and deferrednatax

liabilities, income tax effects are reflected aciog to the method in which the Company expectstover or

settle the carrying amounts of the related assetdiabilities as of the end of the reporting pdrieferred

income tax assets and liabilities are offset ofifgére is a legally enforceable right to offset thlated current
income tax liabilities and assets, and they rdtatacome taxes levied by the same tax authoritithay intend

to settle current income tax liabilities and asseta net basis. Any additional income tax expemsasred as
a result of the payment of dividends are recognizbdn liabilities related to the payment of dividerare

recognized.

(23) Earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earnings per sharenafnon shares in terms of profit or loss and pissém

the statement of comprehensive income. Basic egsrper share are calculated by dividing the profitoss
attributable to common shares by the weighted geemamber of common shares issued and outstandiirgyd
the reporting period.



(24) Operating segment

The Company classifies segments based on integpalting data that is periodically reviewed by theef
operating decision maker to make decisions on ressuo be allocated to the segments and evalbete t
performances. As described in Note 6, there aep8rting segments, each of which is a strategitafrthe
Company. Strategic units provide different produatsl services and are operated separately bedagse t
technology and marketing strategies required fohdmsiness unit are different.

Segment information reported to CEO includes itelirectly attributable to the division and itemsttban be
reasonably allocated. The unallocated items arenlgpn@ommon assets such as the headquarters byilding
expenses related to the headquarters, and corparaassets and corporate tax liabilities.

5. Risk Management

In relation to financial instruments, the Compasgxposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and markiek. This
note discloses information on the above risks t@lwvthe Company is exposed, as well as the Compaisic
management objectives, policies, and risk assessamh management procedures. Additional quantgativ
information is disclosed throughout the financiatsments.

(1) Risk Management System

The Board of Directors is responsible for estalntighand supervising the risk management systenhef t
Company and carries out implementation activitieshsas establishing risk management policies and
identifying, evaluating and managing risks from #merprise-level perspective.

The Company's risk management policy has beenlisstath to identify and analyze the risks the Comypan
faces, to set appropriate risk thresholds and alsntand to prevent risks from exceeding the tholeish Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed rigidareflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company aims at estahlish strict and structured control environmentvirich

all employees can understand their roles and regpibties through training and management stansiart
procedures.

The Company's audit committee supervises how mamagiemanages compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviewshahéhe Company's risk management system is
appropriate. Internal audit assists the audit cdtesis supervisory function, conducts regular gmecisi
reviews on risk management controls and procedarekreports the results to the audit committee.

(2) Credit risk

“Credit Risk” refers to the risk that the Companyllwuffer financial loss due to failure of perfoimy
contractual obligations by customers or counteigarto financial instruments. It mainly arises fralabt
securities and trade receivables payable by custome

(D Trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is mainlge#d by the characteristics of each customerthmit
customer distribution, such as bankruptcy riskhi@ industry and country in which the customer ojgsras
also considered as a factor affecting credit Wsk.the Company’'s exposure is dispersed among raultip
customers, credit risk is not concentrated.

Many of the Company's customers have the continbosisess relationships, so losses do not ocayudraly.
When reviewing credit risk for customers, the Compalassifies them according to characteristich saags



whether the customer is an individual or a corpomatwhether the customer is a wholesaler, retader
consumer, credit, and previous financial difficesti Most of the trade receivables arise from they@my's
wholesale customers. Customers classified as “highi are included in the restricted customer fist

management, and future sales are possible only pdngng the operation security deposit or payingdwvance
payment.

The Company has established an allowance for lesgeected to occur on trade receivables. This altme
consists of the specific impairment losses on iiddially significant items and an impairment losatthas
arisen but has not yet been identified on a grddimancial assets with similar characteristicdoflance for
a group of financial assets is determined basedustarical data on the recovery of similar finaheissets.

@ Debt securities

The Company limits exposure to credit risk by irires only in regional development bonds and nationa
housing bonds.

@ Guarantee

It is the policy of the Company to provide guarastenly to related parties or business partners wasal
support for business. As of December 31, 2023ytlaeantees provided by the Company are describ€dtes
16 and 33.

(3) Liquidity risk

“Liquidity Risk” refers to the risk that the Compawill have difficulties in meeting its obligationrelated to
financial liabilities. The Company's liquidity magement method is to maintain sufficient liquidibygay off
its liabilities at maturity without the risk of incring unacceptable losses or damaging the Compegpitation
even in financially difficult circumstances.

The Company has sufficient demand deposits to cthveexpected operating costs, including repayroént
financial liabilities, and credit limits at finaradiinstitutions with high credit ratings. This doest include
potential effects due to extreme conditions thahcé be reasonably foreseen.

(4) Market risk

“Market Risk” refers to the risk that the fair valof financial instruments or future cash flowsliictuate
due to fluctuations in market prices such as exgbaates, interest rates, and price of equity #&sirThe
objective of market price management is to managecantrol market risk exposure within acceptaiotéts
while optimizing returns.

@ Currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risksaes, purchases and borrowings denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency ef@ompany. The primary currency in which theses@ations
are presented is USD.

@ Interest rate risk

The Company manages interest rate risk by peritidiceviewing interest rate fluctuations and repeayior
refinancing related liabilities to manage intemage risk.



(5) Capital Management

The Company's capital management policy is to rairgound capital for the trust of investors, dadi and
the market and the future development of the bssinEhe Company strives to maintain a balance legtwe
sound financial positions. The Company's capitaicstire consists of equity and net liabilities affeducting
cash and cash equivalents and short- and longfteamcial instruments from borrowings. The detailsapital

management as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 &otoaes:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
ltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022

Total borrowings 404,871,208 462,926,357
Less:

Cash and cash equivalents 40,503,091 49,176,874
Short-term financial instruments 23,170,00( 68,805,381
Long-term financial instruments 14,241,054 6,931,410
Adjusted borrowings 326,957,059 338,012,688
Equity 300,693,317 296,085,928
Adjusted debt ratio 108.73% 114.16%

6. Operating Segments

The Company has 3 reporting segments, which aategic sales units. The consolidation financiakstents
of the Company include the related information.



7. Cash and cash equivalents

(1) Cash and cash equivalents as of December 2B, &td 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)

Iltem

Dec 31, 2023

Dec 31, 2022

Ordinary deposits

40,503,091

49,176,878

(2) Restricted deposits as of December 31, 2022684, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)

[2)

[72)

ltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022 .me”m(.:'al Remarks
institutior
2,000,000 2,000,000 Nonghyup Bank Win-win loans
. . 5,000,00d -| Nonghyup Bank
Shortterm financial 57,647,500 Kookmin Bank
Instruments — Collaterals for borrowing
- 4,255,000 KEB Hana Bank
- 2,500,00d KDB
7,000,000 5,000,000 Nonghyup Bank| Collaterals for borrowings
Long-term financial : 680,000 KEB Hana Bank CO""’}terzsg"r dk.)or.row'ng
instruments ' or Subsidiaries
3,000,000 - Gyobo Life Collaterals for borrowing
Insuranc
Total 17,000,00( 72,082,50(

(3) The composition of short-term and long-termafinial instruments as of December 31, 2023 and B022

follows:
(In thousands of Korean woh)
ltem Descriptions Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Term deposits 23,170,00( 67,740,381
Short-term financial instruments | Periodical deposits - 1,065,000
Subtotal 23,170,00( 68,805,381
Long-term financial instruments Long-term deposit 14,241,054 6,931,410
Total 37,411,059 75,736,791




8. Trade and other receivables

(1) The composition of trade receivables and otbeeivables as of December 31, 2023 and is asmsilo

(In thousands of Korean wo

- Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022

Curren Non-curren Curren Non-curren

Trade receivable 77,037,594 - 68,903,984 -
Allowance for trade receivables (1,094,680 -| (1,451,517 -
Loans - - 66,000 40,000
Allowance for loans - - (66,000) (40,000
Account receivables 87,407 - 78,817 -
Allowance for account receivables (17,669 - (17,924) -
Accrued income 666,050 - 646,745 -
VAT paid for others 1,634,151 - 2,909,884 -
Security deposits 9,143,961 7,480,268 9,150,651 8,873,63(
Allowance for security deposits - (4,480) - (4,480)
Unrealized security deposits - (408,949 - (254,647
Total 87,456,81¢ 7,066,839 80,220,644 8,614,503

(2) Changes in allowance for bad debts for tradeather receivables for the years ended Decemh&202B

and 2022, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wc

Item Dec 31, 202 Dec 31, 202
Beginning balance 1,579,921 1,655,151
Writ-off of allowance of bad de (298,336 (58,870)
Reversal of allowance for bad d (164,756 (16,360)
Ending balance 1,116,829 1,579,921




9. Inventories

(1) The composition of inventories as of Decemier2®23 and 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
ltem Acquisition | Valuation Carrying | Acquisition | Valuation Carrying
cost loss amount cost loss amount
Goods 1,837,017 - 1,837,017 1,709,578 - 1,709,578
Products 35,021,990 (1,303,577 33,718,413 26,326,497 (968,523 25,357,974
Work in progress 3,198,301 - 3,198,301 3,390,691 - 3,390,691
Raw materials 80,735,97§ - 80,735,974 88,262,984 - 88,262,987
Subsidiary 2,648,290 | 2648290  2,447,64¢ | 2,447,646
material:
Stored goods 8,721,615 - 8,721,615 9,393,884 - 9,393,884
Total 132,163,191 (1,303,577) 130,859,614 131,531,278 (968,523) 130,562,75%

As inventories are valued at net realizable value loss on valuation of inventories additionaltidad to the
cost of sales during the current year is KRW335,00d.

(2) Inventories provided as collaterals in relatiorborrowing arrangements as of December 31, 20@3&s

follows:

(In USD, thousands of Korean wq

n)

Collaterals Coverage Related borrowings Provided to
USD 15,448,57
Inventories USD 63,700,000 17,500,00 EXport"}Tport Bank of
10,500,00 orea

10. Biological assets

(1) The composition biological assets as of DecerBhe2023 and 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

ltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Biological assets for production 9,705,764 11,042,526
Biological assets for consumption 24,692,364 35,055,461
Total 34,398,137 46,097,987

y




(2) Changes in Biological assets for productiorfieryears ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 &koass:

l

@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean wo
Item GPS PS ‘ Total

Acquisition cost:

Beginning balance 5,535,778 10,612,22¢ 16,148,004

Acquisition cost 3,226,771 - 3,226,771

Increase due to breeding 705,700 14,214,063 14,919,763

Disposal amount (3,583,154 (15,278,067 (18,861,221

Ending balance 5,885,095 9,548,221 15,433,317
Accumulated depreciation:

Beginning balance (1,715,510 (3,389,968 (5,105,478

Depreciation (3,703,934 (15,779,362 (19,483,296

Disposal amount 3,583,154 15,278,067 18,861,221

Ending balance (1,836,290 (3,891,263 (5,727,553
Carrying amount:

Beginning balance 3,820,268 7,222,258 11,042,526

Ending balance 4,048,805 5,656,959 9,705,764
@ 2022

(In thousands of Korean wo
Item GPS PS ‘ Total

Acquisition cost:

Beginning balance 4,405,584 10,384,669 14,790,253

Acquisition amount 3,581,559 - 3,581,559

Increase due to breeding 474,495 15,979,304 16,453,799

Disposal amount (2,925,860 (15,751,747 (18,677,607

Ending balance 5,535,778 10,612,22¢ 16,148,004
Accumulated depreciation:

Beginning balance (1,103,594 (3,942,775 (5,046,369

Depreciation (3,537,774 (15,198,940 (18,736,714

Disposal amount 2,925,854 15,751,747 18,677,605

Ending balance (1,715,510 (3,389,968 (5,105,478
Carrying amount:

Beginning balance 3,301,990 6,441,894 9,743,884

Ending balance 3,820,264 7,222,254 11,042,526

!




(3) Fair value of biological assets for consumption

@ Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of biological assets measurediavéues as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 arellasvt:

i) Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Biological assets for ; ; 24,692,364 24,692,368
consumptior— Live chickens
ii) Dec 31, 2022
(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Biological assets for ; ; 35,055,461 35,055,461
consumptior— Live chicken:

@ Changes in the beginning and endings balancéseatpeated fair value measurements classifiedas L

3 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022sdollows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Item 2023 2022
Beginning carrying amount 35,055,461 24,608,229
Increase due to breeding 532,705,127 494,607,147
Increase due to external purchases 24,215,683 21,500,264
Changes in net fair value of harvest 170,664,22( 165,266,48(
Changes in net fair value of biological assets held (668,360 9,649,577
Transfer to inventories after harvest (737,279,763 (680,576,231
Ending carrying amount 24,692,364 35,055,461

@ Valuation techniques for repetitive fair value m@@ments classified as Level 3 in the fair valieeanchy
and inputs used in fair value measurement arellasvio

Correlation between key
Item Valuation Techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable variables and
fair value

- Unit price per kg:

Adjusted unit price using th

market price of Korea Broilg
Biological |L_..\ -\« 1o be determined Association, Korea Chicke g the estimate of unit prig
assets for |~ L ok Association, and Korea Nati\ per kg increases, the estim

consumptior] PP ChickenAssociation as of t of fajr value increases.

end of the reporting period:

-Unit per kg: Application o

estimated average weight




(4) Fair value measurement methods and assumpgtobslogical assets for consumption

In the case of live chickens, the biological astatsonsumption that are subject to fair valuel@aton, as
there is no active trading market, the market valulglicly announced by the association is applethé fair
value per unit. In addition, in the case of livécklens that are growing, since there is no tramsagrice, it is
assumed that the market price according to theageeweight is linearly distributed.

(5) Risks exposed in relation to biological assets
The Company are exposed to the following variosissrin relation to biological assets.
(D Regulatory and environmental risks

The Company complies with the laws and regulatmfisorea and others regions where the business aite
located. The Company enacts and implements enveatahpolicies to comply with local environmentada
other laws and management of the Company condecisdic reviews to identify environmental risks and
ensure that the Company's policies are appropgoatenage these risks.

@ Supply and demand risk

The Company is exposed to financial risks arismogifchanges in the price of biological assets. Cbmpany
does not anticipate that the price of biologicakas will not decrease significantly in the fored®e future by
breeding them depending on the size of supply @ntbaid requested in the market.

In addition, the management periodically reviews dutlook for the price of biological assets bylgniag
industry trends to ensure that the expected brgestiale and expected demand are consistent.

@ Climate and other risks

The Company may be financially affected from digsaand other risks of biological assets held by the
Company. The Company monitors the possibility skdise on a regular basis and, if there are sigiisedse,
prevents the spread of the disease through extemgigrantine and mass cull. In addition, to stiesgt
immunity to disease, the Company improves breeéhwdities and supply high-quality feed for biolagi
assets.



11. Other Financial Assets and Other Assets

(1) Other financial assets as of December 31, 20232022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wan)

Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
ftem Current Non-current Current Non-current
Receivables of financial guaranteg 2,110 - 1,325 2,110
Derivatives assets 469,200 - 196,080 -
Total 471,310 - 197,40% 2,110

(2) Other assets as of December 31, 2023 and 282&dollows:

(In thousands of Korean wan)

Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
ftem Current Non-current Current Non-current
Local development bond - - 1,325 -
National housing bond 2,110 - - 2,110
Total 2,110 - 1,325 2,110

(3) The composition of amortized cost financiakas$or years ended December 31, 2023 and 202ZaH@ws:

(In thousands of Korean woh)

Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
ftem Current Non-current Current Non-current
Beginning balance 1,325 2,110 3,510 3,435
Deducted amount (1,325) - (3,510) -
Sub-total - 2,110 - 3,435
Liquidity substitution 2,110 (2,110) 1,325 (1,325)
Total 2,110 - 1,325 2,110

(4) Other assets as of December 31, 2023 and 282&dollows:

(In thousands of Korean wan)

- Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Advance payment 1,027,175 - 75,52( -
Allowance for advance payment - - (75,520 -
Advance payment for breeding 2,968,663 - 3,167,155 -
Qgsmigfe for breeding advan (178.387 i (229,350 i
Prepaid expenses 868,662 - 971,856 -
Total 4,686,113 - 3,909,661 -




(5) Changes in allowance for bad debts in otheztader the years ended December 31, 2023 and &@22s
follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Iltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Beginning balance 304,870 369,500
Bad debt expenses (97,520 -
Reversal of bad debt allowance (28,963 (64,630)
Ending balance 178,387 304,870

12. Investment in subsidiaries

(1) Details of investment in subsidiaries as of &@aber 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Holding | Carrying | Holding | Carrying

Main business

Item Company Name Location | Month

activity Ratic amoun Ratic amoun
Subsidiary (*1) HBC Co., Ltd. Korea Dec. Poultry farming 90.00% 7,032,600 90.00% 6,132,600
Subsidiary (2) Harim Animal Clinic Korea | Dec. V,jtezrl'é‘;zecr'\'/?f 0.00% - 100.00% 155,070
Subsidiary (*3) Sing Green FS Corporation Korea Dea. Poultry fagnin100.00% 19,020,425100.00% 19,020,425
Subsidiary (*1) BNP Co., Ltd. Korea Dec. Poultry farming  0.00% -/ 90.00% 900,000
Total 26,053,025 26,208,095

(*1) The Company absorbed and merged its subsidé? Co., Ltd. during the current year.
(*2) The dissolution and liquidation of the Compamags completed during the current year.
(*3) The sub-subsidiaries controlled by the sulasids were excluded.

(2) Changes in investment in subsidiaries as oebdser 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Item 2023 2022
Beginning amount 26,208,095 7,187,67(
Acquisition amount - 6,000,00(
Disposal amount (*1) (155,070 -
Reversal of subsidiary impairment (*2) - 13,020,425
Ending balance 26,053,025 26,208,09%

(*1) Harim Animal Clinic Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, comigd its dissolution and liquidation during the eumtr
year. The difference between the net residual asdee received after liquidation and the carryamgount of
the investment in subsidiary shares was recogrageloss on disposal of investment in subsidiaayes.

(*2) During 2020, at the time of the merger withe@n Biotech Co., Ltd., the investment in the subsykhares

of SingGreen FS Co., Ltd. was transferred at ayrgyr amount of KRW O (acquisition cost of
KRW24,470,494,000, accumulated impairment loss BiNR4,470,494,000). During the prior year, it was
determined that the impairment signs for the inwesit stake in SingGreen FS Co., Ltd. were remoaed,
upon re-evaluation of the recoverable amount, apaiment loss reversal of KRW13,020,425,000 was
recognized. The said impairment loss reversaldiided in other non-operating income in the staténoé
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount vimsaged based on the use value, and the key assunsipt
used in estimating the use value are as follows.



- Cash flows were estimated based on the compaaglsexperience, actual operating results, anthessi
plans for the next 5 years, and subsequent casis fiere estimated by applying a growth rate of @00

- The discount rate applied when calculating theiness value was estimated to be the weighted geveast
of capital (WACC) of 11.16%.

- The results of the sensitivity analysis for therdies in the discount rate and perpetual growth rate
which are the main variables applied in calculatmgvalue in use, are as follows.

(In millions of Korean won
Iltem Permanent growth rate
Di?\f\?/i‘gt(:?ate -1.00% 0.00% 1.00%
10.16% 20,10p 22,131 24,599
11.16% 17,399 19,020 20,961
12.16% 15,118 16,436 17,989

13. Investment property

(1) Changes in investment real estate for the yeaded December 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

S 2023 2022
Land ‘ Building ‘ Total Land ‘ Building Total

Acquisition:
Beginning 5,462,602 29,819,610 35,282,212 5,462,602 29,819,610 35,282,217
Disposal (101,428 (726,794 (828,222 - - -
Ending balance 5,361,174 29,092,816 34,453,99( 5,462,602 29,819,610 35,282,217
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning -| (13,314,241) (13,314,241 -| (12,580,774) (12,580,774
Disposal - 178,670 178,670 - - -
Depreciation - (690,090 (690,090 - (733,467 (733,467
Ending balance -| (13,825,661) (13,825,661 -| (18,314,241) (13,314,241
Carrying amount
Beginning 5,462,602 16,505,369 21,967,971 5,462,602 17,238,836 22,701,438
Ending balance 5,361,174 15,267,155 20,628,329 5,462,602 16,505,369 21,967,971

(*) As of Dec. 31, 2023, investment properties hbbgen provided as collateral for borrowings fromlbdrefer
to Note 16)

(2) Income related to investment property

Gains or losses related to investment propertyhieryears ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 anHasst

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item 2023 2022
Rent income 875,055 238,951
Rental cost (778,285 (796,113
Total 96,770 (557,162




(3) Fair value of investment properties

Fair value and carrying amount of investment propgias of December 31, 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item Fair value Carrying amount
Land 5,032,504 5,361,174
Building 24,803,091 15,267,155
Total 29,835,595 20,628,329

Fair value of investment properties as of Dec. ZR23 were calculated by the use of information sagh
publicly posted price of common housing.

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E)

(1) Changes in PP&E for the years ended Decemhe202B and 2022 are as follows:

@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean wc
Facilities Construction
Item Land Building | Structures| Machinery and Vehicles Others in progress Total
equipmer (*1)
Acquisition cost:
Beginning balance| 17,151,964 238,379,189 19,252,731 230,177,030 226,678,649 1,414,027 35,461,874 16,204,001 784,719,465
Acquisition 23,100 716,325 2,601,939 1,962,443 37,063,367 42,367,169
Disposal (115,862) (70,034) (247,243) (367,327)|  (91,308)| (1,255,400 -l (2,147,174)
Other changes 598,167| 2,530,341 28,572,371 15,034,749 416,941 (47,171,030 (18,470)
Ending balance 17,750,131 240,793,664 19,205,797 259,218,483 243,948,001 1,322,719 36,585,859 6,096,333 824,920,990
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balance (64,240,496) (10,629,740) (147,812,818)| (97,593,007) (1,186,426) (28,460,497 - | (349,922,984)
Disposal 38,138 34,433 221,781 362,420 91,304/ 1,127,326 - 1,875,402
Depreciation (5,977,199 (794,585) (14,157,005) (17,808,216 (72,986)| (3,499,472 -| (42,309,463
Ending balance (70,179,557) (11,389,892) (161,748,042)( (115,038,803)| (1,168,108) (30,832,643 - (390,357,045)
Accumulated impairment losses (*2)
Impairment loss (2,328,824 (31,516)| (1,351,600)| (1,866,926) (67,710) - (5,646,576)
Ending balance (2,328,824 (31,516)| (1,351,600)| (1,866,926) (67,710) -| (5.646,576)
Government grants:
Beginning balance (8,513,246 (282,714) (59,416) (8,855,376)
Depreciation 239,192 78,268 8,637 326,097
Ending balance (8,274,054 (204,446) (50,779) (8,529,279),
Carrying amount:
Beginning balance| 17,151,964 165,625,447 8,622,991 82,081,499 129,026,226 227,601] 7,001,377 16,204,001 425,941,105
Ending balance 17,750,131 160,011,233 7,784,389 95,914,395 126,991,493 154,611 5,685,505 6,096,333 420,388,090

(*1) Other changes in construction in progressresent the amounts reclassified to PP&E, intdegissets,
and investment properties.

(*2) During the current year, the Company performedgrairment review of the cash-generating unit (CGU)

of the meat processing segment due to the contshaccurrence of operating losses in the CGU. Aesalt of

the impairment review, the Company recognized apairment loss of KRW5,647,000,000 because the

recoverable amount was less than the carrying anwfuhe CGU, and allocated the impairment amoaont t
PP&E (buildings, structures, machinery and equiginfailities and other PP&ES) of the meat proasgsi

segment.



@ 2022

(In thousands of Korean wo
Facilities Construction
Item Land Building Structures | Machinery and Vehicles Others in progress Total
equipmer *)

Acquisition cost:
Beginning J A A
balanc: 17,151,964 231,529,63 19,654,050 270,329,933 225,469,611 1,559,546 43,555,912 10,366,440 819,617,093
Acquisition - 347,050 - 960,377 3,107,993 5,230 1,209,399 25,897,360 31,527,409
Disposal - (46,002) (401,319) (47,567,074 (8,209,315, (294,121) (9,619,137, - (66,136,968
Other changes| - 6,548,504 - 6,453,794 6,310,360 143,372 315,700| (20,059,799 (288,069),
Ending balanceé 17,151,964 238,379,189 19,252,731 230,177,030 226,678,649 1,414,027  35461,874 16,204,001 784,719,465
Accumulated depreciation:
E;girr:ging -| (58:347,210| (10,054,902) (181,733,752) (88,588,768) (1,372,017) (34,295,709 -| (374,392,358)
Disposal - 14,951 243,331 47,521,569 8,156,193 264,774 9,527,785 - 65,728,603
Depreciation -|  (5,908,237) (818,169)|  (13,600,635) (17,160,432 (79,183)| (3,692,573 - (41,259,229
Ending balance¢ -| (64,240,496) (10,629,740) (147,812,81¢ | (97,593,007) (1,186,426) (28,460,497 -| (349,922,984
Government grants:
E:Igigging -l (8,752,438) - (360,982)  (68,053) - - -l (9181473
Depreciation - 239,192 - 78,268 8,637 - - - 326,097
Ending balance -|  (8,513,246) - (282,714) (59,416) - - - (8,855,376
Carrying amount:
E:Igigging 17,151,964 164,429,989 9,599,148 88,235,199 136,812,79( 187,529 9,260,203 10,366,440 436,043,262
Ending balanc¢ 17,151,964 165,625,447 8,622,991 82,081,498 129,026,224 227,601 7,001,377 16,204,001 425,941,105

=

(*) Other changes in construction in progresgsresent the amounts reclassified to PP&E, intd@gissets, and

investment properties



(2) Cash-Generating Unit Impairment Review

The Company performed an impairment review duédocbntinuous operating losses in the meat praagssi
segment's cash-generating unit. Since the recdeeehount exceeded the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit, no impairment loss was recognized.

(In millions of Korean won

ltem Contents

Cash flow estimatiol
perioc

Perpetual growth ratépplication of 1% in the light of industry averageowth rate
Weighted average

Estimation of cash flows for 5 years based on tiharé business plans

0,
cost of capite 9.3%
Compa_rlson target 94,393
carrying valu
Recoverable value 88,746
(use value
Impairment amount 5,647

The results of the sensitivity analysis for the uakie with respect to changes in the discount aatk the
perpetual growth rate, which are the key variables, are as follows;

(In millions of Korean won
Discount Rate (WACC)
8.3% 9.3% 10.3%
0.0% 95,167 80,582 68,958
1.0% 106,31( 88,746 75,098
2.0% 121,002 99,152 82,720

Iltem

Permanent growth
rate




15. Lease

(1) The composition of leasehold right-of-use asastof December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

D Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Acquisition amount | Accumulated depreciatid Carrying amount
Building 2,817,860 (1,502,893 1,314,967
Facilities and equipment 582,449 (264,127 318,322
\ehicles 4,690,670 (2,358,857 2,331,813
Others 132,054 (51,353 80,701
Total 8,223,033 (4,177,230 4,045,803

@ Dec 31, 2022

(In thousands of Korean woh)

I Accumulated -
Item Acquisition amount . Carrying amount
depreciatio

Building 3,120,630 (1,833,411 1,287,219
Facilities and equipment 343,547 (247,704 95,843
Vehicles 4,711,096 (2,458,605 2,252,491
Others 132,054 (7,337) 124,717

Total 8,307,327 (4,547,057 3,760,270

(2) Changes in the carrying amount of leaseholatfig-use assets for the years ended Decembe028,&éhd

2022, are as follows:

@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Beginning Increase/decreasg  Depreciation Ending balance
Building 1,287,218 1,567,354 (1,539,604 1,314,968
Facilities and equipment 95,843 582,449 (359,970 318,322
Vehicles 2,252,491 1,439,302 (1,359,979 2,331,814
Others 124,717 - (44,018 80,699
Total 3,760,269 3,589,104 (3,303,571 4,045,803
@ 2022
(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Beginning Increase/decreasg  Depreciation Ending balance
Building 1,641,145 1,087,487 (1,441,413 1,287,219
Facilities and equipment 101,715 343,547 (349,419 95,843
Vehicles 3,004,044 455,870 (1,207,419 2,252,491
Others 59,059 132,053 (66,395 124,717
Total 4,805,959 2,018,957 (3,064,646 3,760,27(




(3) Changes in lease liabilities for the years @ndecember 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean wo
Item Beginning Change | Interest expenss Payments Ending balance
Lease liability 3,659,458 2,895,374 323,040 (3,106,565 3,771,309
@ 2022
(In thousands of Korean wo
Item Beginning Change | Interest expenss Payments Ending balance
Lease liability 4,444,96( 1,776,917 255,560 (2,817,979 3,659,458

(4) Expenses incurred from leases for the yearseb@cember 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item 2023 2022
Interest expense incurred on lease liabilities 323,040 255,560
Short-term lease related expenses 742,715 690,290
Costs related to small asset lease 1,604,590 1,519,917
Variable lease payments not included in lease siaset liabilities (*) 483,638 424,463
Total expenses 3,153,983 2,890,230

(*) In applying the recognition exemption criteria feases under K-IFRS 1116, the difference between

purchases and sales in the form of transactionsendtecks and feed are sold to farmers for conferching
and livestock is recognized as a fee for the taedliexcluded from lease accounting under the blriease
requirements. This includes expenses related tongesuch as fuel, electricity, water, veterinargditine, and
labor costs, and may vary depending on the quafitthe live chickens. Therefore, due to the diffigun

measuring lease expenses for such cases in prahc@mount of such cases was not separatelylasdiand

disclosed



16. Collateralized Assets

(1) Details of assets provided as collateral fabilities of the Company as of the December 313282 as

follows:

(In USD, thousands of Korean wq

Collateralized assets

Carrying amount

Collateralized amou

Type

Borrowing amount

Provided to

KRW 574,939,580

KRW 402,027,000

KRW 231,740,000

160,000,000 General Funds| 62,500,000 KEB Hana Bank
6,328,000 | General Funds 10,940,000 Nonghyup Bank
- . 8,270,000 | General Funds USD 10,278,267 Woori Bank
Land, building, machine 429 079.966
and etc. T 72,000,000
128,429,000 General Fund KDB
USD 12,104,186
84,000,000 General Funds 34,300,000 EXPOrtimport Bank
of Kores
Short-term financial 5,000,000 5,000,000 General Funds| 5,000,000 Nonghyup Bank
instrument
Long-term financial 7,000,000 7,000,000 | General Funds 7,000,000 Nonghyup Bank
Instruments 3,000,000 3,000,000| General Funds 12,000,000 Nonghyup Bank
USD 15,448,57(
Inventories 130,859,614 USD 63,700,000 Import Usance 17,500,004 EXpogmgroer;Ba“"
10,500,000
USDO | USD 63,700,000 USD 37,831,023
Total

(2) Assets provided as collateral for related paréis of December 31, 2023 are none.

(3) Details of payment guarantee provided for tA@arties (individual farmers) other than relatedipa as of
December 31, 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wa
Beneficiary Guarantee limit Drawn amount | Guarantee detailg Issuing Bank
23 parties including 9,274,940 6,628,972Liability guaranteg ~ Cc0 capital
Areum Farn Corporatiol

n)



17. Intangible Assets

Changes in intangible assets for the years endedrblger 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)

2023 2022
. industrial . Industrial
ltem Membershif Membership
(*1) Software pr_operty Total (*1) Software pr_operty Total
rights rights
Acquisition cost:
E:g::mg 673,791 10,271,435 78,225 11,023,451 671,349 9,877,064 71,887| 10,620,300
(
Acquisition 101,627 - 101,627 24,442 112,640 - 137,082
Disposal (127,000) (35,900) - (162,900) (22,000) - - (22,000)
O('ig?r changes 18,470 18,470 - 281,731 6,338 288,069
Ending balance 546,791 10,337,162 96,695 10,980,644 673,791 10,271,435 78,225 11,023,451
Accumulated amortization:
E:g::mg (9,409,623)  (42,294)] (9,451,917 -| (8,898,149)  (32,141)] (8,930,290
(
Amortization (412,287)  (11,395) (423,682) - (511,474)  (10,153) (521,627)
Disposal 35,897 - 35,897 - - -

Ending balance

(9,786,013)  (53,689) (9,839,702

-l (9,409,623)  (42,294) (9,451,917

Carrying amount:

Beginning
balanc

673,791 861,812 35,931 1,571,534

671,349 978,915 39,746 1,690,010

Ending balance 546,791 551,149 43,006 1,140,944

673,791 861,812 35,931 1,571,534

(*1) As there is no foreseeable limit on the peraver which it is expected to be used, the estichaseful life
of membership is indefinite and not amortized adomly.

(*2) Other increases or decreases in software adaistrial property rights are the amounts transtefrom

PP&E.

18. Trade and other payables

The composition of trade and other payables asegEbhber 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
- Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Trade payables 42,482,881 - 50,615,93( -
Account payables 33,324,524 - 27,855,294 -
Accrued expenses 27,032,054 666,695 27,928,886 6,199,575
Deposits received 1,529,764 - 1,315,978 -
Import deposit 3,955,042 255,000 3,832,255 -

Total 108,324,267 921,695 111,548,344 6,199,575




19. Borrowings

(1) The composition of borrowings as of DecemberZBP3 and 2022, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

- Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Short-term borrowings (*) 292,048,309 - 375,433,035 -
Long-term borrowings (*) 21,784,00( 71,070,00( 19,690,00( 47,854,00(
Bonds - 20,000,00( - 20,000,00¢
Discount on bonds payables - (31,100) - (50,679
Total 313,832,309 91,038,90( 395,123,035 67,803,321

(*) As of December 31, 2023, financial assets, imwdes and PP&E were provided as collaterals for

borrowings from banks (Refer to Notes 7, 9 and 16).

(2) The composition of short-term borrowings a®etember 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Lender Type Interest rate (%) Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
General loan MOR+1.75 9,000,000 9,500,000
Nonghyup Bank
General loan MOR+1.82 1,940,000 1,940,004
General loan CD (12M) + 1.508 20,000,00( 30,000,00(
KEB Hana Bank
General loan CD (3M) +1.611~2.1, 23,750,00( 18,750,00(
Industrial Finance Bon
General loan fixated at +1.2 - 50,000,000
KDB General loan CD (3M) +1.15 - 11,500,00(
Industrial Finance Bon
General loan (6M) +1. 2 57,000,00( 2,400,000
General loan 4.81 25,800,00( 25,800,000
Export-Import General loan 4.91~5.05 16,500,00( 16,500,00(
Bank of Korea G I Export-Import Bank
enerarioan 1 gond (3M) + 1.15~1.% 20,000,00( 16,500,00(
Kookmin Bank Import L/C Term SOFR + 1.00 118,058,309 192,543,03%
Total 292,048,309 375,433,035




(3) Long-term borrowings as of December 31, 20282002, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Lender Type Interest rate (%) Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
General loan 3.00 760,000 950,000
General loan 2.50 1,344,00( 1,344,000
Nonghyup Bank
General loan - 54,000,00( 12,000,00(
General loan 3.00 3,000,000 -
Facility loan CD (3M) + 1.54 17,250,00( 20,250,00(
KEB Hana Bank —
Facility loan CD (3M) + 2.62 1,500,000 15,500,00(
. Industrial Financing
KDB Facility loan Bond (6M) +1.9¢ 15,000,00( 15,000,00(C
General loan - - 2,500,000
Subtotal 92,854,00( 67,544,00(
liquidity substitution (21,784,000 (19,690,000
Total 71,070,00( 47,854,00(

(4) Bonds as of December 31, 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item Date of issue Maturity Interest rate (%) Amount
5" Non-Guaranteed Bonds (*) 2022-06-30 2025-06-30 4.80 20,000,000
Total 20,000,00(

(*) There is a provision of acceleration in the tant, in the event of acceleration for bonds othan the 5

privately placed bonds.

(5) The repayment schedule of borrowings as of Bbes 31, 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item Within 1 year| 1~2 years 2-3 years Over 3 years Total
Short-term borrowings 292,048,309 - - - 292,048,309
Long-term borrowings 21,784,00( 63,190,00( 3,940,00d 3,940,000 92,854,00(
Bonds - 20,000,00( - - 20,000,00¢

Total 313,832,309 83,190,00( 3,940,00d 3,940,000 404,902,309




20. Other financial liabilities and other curreiabilities

(1) The composition of other financial liabilitias of December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

ttemn Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Derivatives Liabilities - - 920,722 -
Total - - 920,722 -

(2) The composition of other current liabilitiesaDecember 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
ltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Advances received 1,778,547 1,943,212
Greenhouse gas emission liability 79,078 92,272
Total 1,857,625 2,035,484

21. Derivatives

(1) The composition of derivatives as of Decemlder2023 and 2022, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

temn Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Derivative assets:
Currency forward 469,200 - 196,080 -
Total 469,200 - 196,080 -
Derivative liabilities:
Knock out Forward - - 418,084 -
Forward exchange - - 33,704 -
CAP (Capped Forward) - - 468,934 -
Total - - 920,722 -

(2) Details of derivative instruments as of Decenfe 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won, US

D)

Purpose Item Counterparty Contract amount Carrying amount
Samsung Futures USD 27,800,000 133,44(Q
Trading Currency forward —
purpose Sl Securities USD 69,950,000 335,760
Total USD 97,750,000 469,200




(3) Gains and losses on the above derivativesaciioss for the years ended December 31, 2023 @22 &e

as follows:
(In thousands of Korean won)
temn Gain or loss on valuation (curren| Gain or loss on trading (current
2023 2022 2023 2022

Knock out forward - (418,084 2,245,014 (2,135,600
Forward exchange - (33,704) 204 -

IRS (Interest Rate Swap) - (7,388) - -
CAP (Capped Forward) - (468,934 564,210 (804,800
Currency forward 273,120 196,080 (3,033,519 2,979,077
Total 273,120 (732,030 (224,087 38,677




22. Employee Benefits

(1) Net liabilities related to employee benefitsbi® recognized in the statements of financial posias of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
defined benefit liability 569,937 (4,274,784
Annual paid leave allowance liabilities 3,707,104 3,394,230
Other long-term employee benefit liabilities 666,695 467,575

(2) Adjustments to net defined benefit liabilitfes the years ended December 31, 2023 and 20z2&dodlows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets MR e Eties
Item (assets
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Beginning balance 45,572,637 46,386,883  (49,847,421) (48,476,402 (4,274,784 (2,089,519
Recognized as expense for the year:
Current service cost 7,430,916 6,804,117 - - 7,430,916 6,804,117
Interest cost (income) 2,062,628 986,625 (2,276,797 (1,035,272 (214,169 (48,647)

Subtotal 9,493,544 7,790,742 (2,276,797 (1,035,272 7,216,747 6,755,470
Recognized in other comprehensive income:
Loss (gain) on
remeasuremen
- Actuarial gain or
loss
Demographic (88,777) . . . (88,777) .
assumptior
Financial 560,578 (3,784,115 - ; 560,578 (3,784,115
assumptior
Experience 2,964,511 2,987,533 - - 2,964,511 2,987,533
adjustmer
- Income from plan - - 759,108 224,605 759,108 224,605
asset

Subtotal 3,436,312 (796,582 759,108 224,605 4,195,424 (571,977
Others
Contributions paid - - (5,700,000 (5,800,000 (5,700,000 (5,800,000
Wage paid (6,964,065 (7,690,794 6,039,911 5,181,997 (924,154 (2,508,797
Transfer from 125,196 57,250 (57,403) (52,527) 67,793 4,723
Transfer to (121,567 (174,862 110,482 110,178 (11,085) (64,684)

Subtotal (6,960,436 (7,808,406 392,990 (560,352 (6,567,446 (8,368,758
Ending balance 51,542,057 45,572,631 (50,972,120) (49,847,421 569,937 (4,274,784




(3) The composition of plan assets as of Decembg?@®3 and 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Equity securities 2,035,414 1,302,543
Debt securities 1,420,174 2,557,802
Financial instruments such as term and periodiosiep 45,173,28( 44,238,354
Transfer to National Pension 7,805 8,808
Others 2,335,443 1,739,913

Total 50,972,12( 49,847,421

(4) Amounts related to defined benefit liabilities of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item Dec 31, 202 Dec 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation 51,542,057 45,572,631
Plan assets (50,972,120 (49,847,421
Under-accumulated amount of plan assets 569,937 (4,274,784
Reconciliation of dlffgrences bgtwegn orlglnal msties and actu (3,436,312 796,582
values related to defined benefit obligati
Adjustment of differences between original estimad@d actug (759,108 (224,605
values related to plan ass

(5) Sensitivity analysis

Effects of change in each significant actuariabagstion as of the end of the current term changdsma
reasonable range on the defined benefit obligasi@s follows:

D Sensitivity analysis according to discount rate

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Discount rate Discount rate
Item 1% down Dec 31, 2023 1% up
Present value of defined benefit obligation 53,739,274 51,542,057 49,529,437
Applicable discount rate 2.70% 3.70% 4.70%
Change 2,197,222 - (2,012,620

2 Sensitivity analysis according to the wage inceaase

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Discount rate

Dec 31, 2023

Discount rate

1% down 1% up
Present value of defined benefit obligation 49,475,534 51,542,057 53,758,471
Applicable discount rate 2.02% 3.02% 4.02%
Change (2,066,521 - 2,216,415




(6) Major estimates used for re-measurement ohddfbenefit plans as of December 31, 2023 and 262as

follows:

Iltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
discount rate 3.70% 5.02%
Future wage growth rate 3.02% 4.11%

As of December 31, 2023, the weighted average ihatfrthe defined benefit liabilities was 4.23 yga

With reference to the defined benefit plan, thetgbation amount estimated to pay in the followiyear of
2024 is KRW7,178,681.

23. Revenue

(1) The composition of revenue sources for thes/eaded December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

ltem 2023 2022

Revenue from contracts with customers 1,188,344,521 1,114,941,267
Revenue from changes in fair value of biologicaleds 169,995,859 174,916,052
Total 1,358,340,380 1,289,857,319

(2) Revenues generated from contracts with custehepending on major geographic markets, majoryatod
and service contracts, and revenue recognitiomgrare as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Item | 2023 | 2022

(1) Major geographic markets

(2) Major product and service lines

Revenue from sale of products

1,087,683,558

1,012,023,402

Revenues from sale of goods

68,727,693

75,109,866

Other sales

31,933,275

27,807,999

Total

1,188,344,521

1,114,941,26Y

(3) Timing of revenue recognition

Fulfillment at one point

1,187,484,578

1,113,855,089

Fulfillment over time

859,943

1,086,174

Total

1,188,344,521

1,114,941,26Y

The above table does not include income from chaungé&ir value of biological assets.

Republic of Korea 1,179,968,179 1,106,894,265
United States of America 5,849,973 5,079,660
Vietham 1,045,816 1,012,634
Canada 619,350 715,447
Japan 215,710 456,025
Others 645,493 783,236

Total 1,188,344,521 1,114,941,267Y



24. Expenses by Nature

Expenses (including manufacturing cost, sales almlirastrative expenses) by nature for the yearsend
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(1) 2023

(In thousands of Korean wo

Sales and administrativ

}

B

D

3

)

)

|

D

Item Manufacturing cost Total
expense
Changes in products and work |n ) (8,168,049 (8,168,049
progres
Amount of raw materials used - 738,752,724 738,752,724
Cost of goods sold - 53,977,724 53,977,729
Employee benefits 45,350,977 93,481,581 138,832,558
Depreciation cost 6,161,898 35,821,464 41,983,366
Depreciation of investment 690,094 ) 690,090
propertie
Amortization of intangible assets 412,354 11,326 423,682
Amortization of right-of-use 2158 618 1,144,956 3,303,571
asset
Depreciation of biological assets - 19,483,296 19,483,296
Other expenses 108,128,552 225,575,90( 333,704,452
Total 162,902,483 1,160,080,930 1,322,983,41
(2) 2022
(In thousands of Korean wo
Item Manufacturing cost SEES @il EE Ty Total
expense
Changes in products and work |n ) (1,818,038 (1,818,038
progres
Amount of raw materials used - 701,191,319 701,191,314
Cost of goods sold - 61,308,381 61,308,381
employee benefits 40,460,904 86,540,184 127,001,08¢
depreciation 6,267,541 34,665,591 40,933,137
Depreciation of investment 733467 ) 733,467
property
Amortization of intangible assets 512,913 8,714 521,627
Amortization of right-of-use 1,910,308 1,154,338 3.064.64€
asset
Depreciation of biological assets - 18,736,714 18,736,714
Other expenses 104,293,253 198,228,693 302,521,944
Total 154,178,387 1,100,015,896 1,254,194,28

3




25. Selling and Administrative Expenses

The composition of selling and administrative exggnfor the years ended December 31, 2023 and B022,

follows:
(In thousands of Korean woh)

Item 2023 2022
Wage 37,827,547 33,929,027
Retirement benefits 2,986,504 2,262,287
Employee benefits 4,536,921 4,269,596
Travel and transportation 651,596 521,678
Communications 509,412 537,919
Water and utilities 39,201 36,225
Electricity 464,125 385,051
Taxes and dues 2,911,475 2,582,679
Rents paid 2,014,531 1,848,059
Repairs 1,232,129 596,176
Insurance premiums 754,846 994,101
Entertainment 304,608 348,451
Advertising 12,794,044 8,438,950
Shipment 55,332,48( 55,860,449
Commissions paid 26,124,284 27,037,453
Vehicle maintenance 1,171,334 1,171,650
Consumables 2,063,844 2,195,507
Books and printing 124,325 111,872
Education and training 232,418 99,925
Sales promotion 329,345 275,903
Depreciation 6,851,988 7,001,009
Storage fee 145,007 156,813
Ordinary development cost 1,123,264 1,175,383
Bad debt expenses (reversal) (193,719 (80,990)
Amortization of intangible assets 412,356 512,913
Amortization of right-of-use assets 2,158,614 1,910,308

Total 162,902,483 154,178,387




26. Other incomes and other expenses

(1) Other incomes for the years ended Decembe2(®13 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item 2023 2022
Rents income 65,265 270,738
Gains on disposal of PP&E 278,218 72,887
Gain on disposal of Investment property 422,849 -
Miscellaneous income 3,159,429 1,420,371
Gain on insurance adjustment 484,057 -
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets 61,634 50,980
Reversal of subsidiary impairment loss - 13,020,425

Total 4,471,457 14,835,401

(2) Other expenses for the years ended Decemb@02B,and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

Item 2023 2022
Loss on disposal of PP&E 160,676 342,640
Loss on disposal of investment propertieg 276,302 -
Impairment losses on PP&E 5,646,578 -
Donations 488,714 866,519
Miscellaneous loss 637,484 790,559
I(;(S)gtlrig)gjiﬂggf to provisions for continge i 17.196.00(
Loss on disposal of subsidiary investment 94,217 -
Total 7,303,971 19,195,719




27. Financial income and financial expenses

(1) Financial incomes for the years ended Dece®beP023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)

Item 2023 2022
Interest income 2,802,354 3,813,513
Gain on foreign currency transactions 1,734,484 3,299,049
Gain on foreign currency translation 2,487,307 7,638,726
Import guarantee fee - 34,746
Gain on trading of derivatives 19,418,494 6,449,431
Gain on valuation of derivatives 469,200 196,080

Total 26,911,843 21,431,544

(2) Financial expenses for the years ended DeceBihe&t023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Item 2023 2022
Interest expense 21,299,335 17,887,792
Loss on foreign currency transactions 5,738,246 18,838,679
Loss on foreign currency translation 547,904 2,532,807
Loss on trading of derivatives 19,642,581 6,410,754
Loss on valuation of derivatives 196,080 928,110
Total 47,424,144 46,598,142




28. Income Tax Expenses

(1) Components of income tax expense (income@years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 arioagsfo

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Item 2023 2022

Current income tax 2,726,917 722,071
Adjustment of income tax for the past term recogdifor the currer 71.640 (1,344,037
year
Changes in deferred income tax due to occurrenteisappearand (4,038,770 3,215,074
of temporary differences, e
Change in deferred tax due to tax loss, etc. 2,325,801 (718,775
Total income tax expense 1,085,588 1,874,333
Income tax expense related to items recognizedhes than profi 876,843 (120,115
or los

Income tax expense 1,962,431 1,754,218

(2) Deferred income tax related to items recognaedther than profit or loss for the years endedeinber

31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item 2023 | 2022
Current tax:
- Remeasurements for defined benefit plans (*) 876,843 (120,115
:(r;g:)me tax expense related to items recognizethas than profit o 876,843 (120,115

(*) Income tax related to the remeasurements oflefimed benefit plan was recognized in other ca@nensive

income.



(3) The relationship between income tax expenseofire) and accounting income for the years ended

December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
ltem 2023 2022

Net income before tax 12,012,141 6,136,122
Tax burden according to applicable tax rate 2,488,537 1,327,947
Adjustments:

(Ier:(cpoer::e;a;(()rigic;u(r)gor:]on-taxable income and deductible 177,125 3,797,044
inchg?r?; (t);temporary difference that has not recegdideferre i (2,695,552

Tax credits and tax reductions (726,925 (343,700

Effect of change in tax rate 25,813 224,684

Additional income tax payment (refund) 71,640 (567,645

Others (73,759) 11,439
Income tax expense (income) 1,962,431 1,754,218
Average effective tax rate 16.34% 28.59%

(4) Deferred income tax expenses due to occurrandedisappearance of temporary differences foydaes

ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Item 2023 2022
Deferred income tax assets at end of the year 7,133,597 5,420,627
Deferred income tax assets at beginning of the year 5,420,627 7,916,926
ti?rt?)g?;r;a(;(if?gr%ir;:,dge to occurrence and diseppEaof (1,712,970 2.496.29¢

(5) The income tax effect of temporary differenessof December 31, 2023 was calculated by applyieg
expected future tax rate for the fiscal year inahihthe temporary differences are extinguished.

(6) It is the income tax levied by the same taxatathority on the Company's deferred tax assetslaferred
tax liabilities and, only when the Company hasgally enforceable right and intent to set off catrax assets
and current tax liabilities, deferred tax assetsdaferred tax liabilities are offset and preseindtie statement

of financial position.



(7) Changes in deferred tax assets (liabilities}e years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022s dodaws:

@D 2023

(In thousands of Korean wo

Ending balance

Bedinni Reflection i Directly
ltem eginning | RETection I - e fiected in Deferred Deferred
SENETES | ENErIES Net amount | income tax | income tax
asset liability

Depreciation (1,851,388 1,192,470 - (658,918) 1,224,622 (1,883,540

Allowance for bad debt 225,277, (158,864) - 66,413 66,413 -

Others 604,986 (106,694) - 498,292 2,575,114 (2,076,824

Provision for temporary (387,167) 22,097 . (365,070) . (365,070)

amortizatiol

Defined benefit obligation - (757,726) 876,843 119,117 10,770,659 (10,651,542

Allowance for inventory 203,390 69,058 - 272,448 272,448 -

valuatior

Qam on valuation of (2,772,656 2,977,795 - 205,139 205,139 -

biological asse

Ga|.n on valuation of 152,175 (209,257) - (57,082) - (57,082)

derivative!

Unrealized d'SC.Ount of 53,476 31,994 - 85,470 85,470 -

long-term security depos

Gayn on insurance (1,135,801 62,756 . (1,073,135 - (1,073,135

adjustment

Accrued expenses (long- 98,191 41,148 - 139,339 139,339 -

term employee benefii

Greenhous gas emission 19,377 (2.850) . 16,527 16,527 .

liabilities

Tax loss carried forward 10,210,857 (2,325,800 - 7,885,057 7,885,057 -

Deferred 'c:'f?c;'ge tax befor 5,420,627 836,127, 876,843 7,133,597 23,240,794 (16,107,193

Off-set effect - (16,107,193 16,107,193
Net deferred income tax 7,133,597 7,133,597 :
assety(liabilities)




@ 2022

(In thousands of Korean wo
, Ending balance
Beainni Reflection i Directly E
Item eginning | Retlection I e ected in Deferred Deferred
SENETES | ENErIES Net amount | income tax | income tax
asset liability
Depreciation (2,365,426 514,038 (1,851,388 46,854 (1,898,242
Allowance for bad debt 273,115 (47,838) 225,277 225,277
Others 662,487 (57,501) 604,986/ 2,497,719 (1,892,733
Provision for temporary (422,265) 35,008 (387,167) (387,167)
amortizatiol
Defined benefit obligation (345,032) 465,147 (120,115) - 9,568,404 (9,568,404
Allowance for inventory 232,385 (28,995) 203,390 203,390
valuatior
Gain on valuation of (825,691) (1,946,965 (2,772,656 (2,772,656
biological asse
Ga|.n on valuation of 2,238,987 (2,086,812 152,175 193,352 (41,177)
derivative:
Unrealized dlscpunt of 111,750 (58,274) 53,476 53,476
long-term security depos
Gain on insurance (1,241,069 105,178 (1,135,891 (1,135,891
adjustment
Accrued expenses (Io_ng- 105,603 (7,412) 98,191 98,191
term employee benefil
Tax loss carried forward 19,377 19,377 19,377
Tax credit carried forward 9,492,082 718,775 10,210,857 10,210,857
Deferred |(r)1f<f:(?5rge tax befor 7,916,926 (2,376,184 (120,115) 5,420,627 23,116,897 (17,696,270
Off-set effect - (17,696,270 17,696,270
Net defe"eq Income tax 5,420,627 5,420,627
assets (liabilities

(8) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities emdent income tax assets and liabilities basethertotal
amount before offset as of December 31, 2023 a@d aée as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Iltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Deferred income tax assets 23,240,79( 23,116,897
Deferred income tax liabilities (16,107,193 (17,696,271
Total 7,133,597 5,420,626
Current income tax liabilities (1,233,405 (287,251




(9) Times of collection and payment of deferrecbime tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo
ltem 2023 2022

Deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax assets to be collected aftend2ths 21,782,664 21,683,899
Deferred income tax assets to be collected witRimbnths 1,458,125 1,432,998
Sub-total 23,240,79( 23,116,897

Current income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities to be collecteceaft2 months (15,910,906 (14,746,620
Deferred income tax liabilities to be collectedhiit 12 months (196,287 (2,949,650
Sub-total (16,107,193 (17,696,270
Net amount of deferred income tax assets (liaed)ti 7,133,597 5,420,621

(10) Details of temporary differences unrecogniasdieferred income tax assets (liabilities) as efdnber

31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wa
Item 2023 2022 Reason
Investment shares in subsidiaries 11,779,287 11,779,287 No disposal plan
Total 11,779,287 11,779,287

n)



29. Capital and capital surplus

(1) The composition of capital as of December 3Rand 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Dec 31, 2022
200,000,000 shares
106,209,702 shares

KRW500

53,104,851

Item Dec 31, 2023
200,000,000 shares
106,209,702 shares
KRW500
53,104,851

Number of authorized shares
Number of shares issued

14

Par value per share

common stock capital

(2) Changes in the number of shares issued foyehes ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are note.
(3) Capital surplus

The composition of capital surplus as of Decemlie2823 and 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022

Capital surplus in excess of par value (*1,2) 256,293,544 256,293,544
(*1) On January 1, 2011, the Company adopted agptiopal share allocation method for its demergemf
Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. As a result, the assets leabilities acquired from the demerged compawyr(ierly
Harim Corporation) were accounted for at carryingoant, and the carrying amount of the acquirechaséts
included an amount of KRW151,396,892,000 that ededehe par value of the shares issued by the Qoynpa

(*2) On March 3, 2020, the Company issued new shiarethe purpose of a business combination, rieguit
an amount of KRW39,875,991,000 that exceeded theghae of the shares issued by the Company.

30. Other capital items
The composition of other equity items as of Decan®de 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
ltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Other capital adjustments (*1) (27,360,647 (27,360,647
Treasury stock (*2,3) (77,314 (77,314)
Total (27,437,961 (27,437,961

(*1) Upon the business combination with Green BgiT€o., Ltd. in 2020, the acquisition price andahgying

amount of the acquired net assets was added aastdit to the capital adjustment.

(*2) When allocating new shares to existing shaladrs due to spin-off, the Company paid in cashatheunt
calculated based on the closing price traded irsthek market as of the date of suspension ofrtgadf old
shares to the shareholders of fractional shareghes a share, which were acquired by the Company.

(*3) Upon the business combination with Green Bgfl€o., Ltd. in 2020, the Company acquired 19,053
shares exercised by shareholders as treasury stoklk&/V52,700,000, and the number of treasury staskof

December 31, 2023 is 22,520 shares.



31. Retained Earnings

(1) The composition of retained earnings as of Ddw 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Item Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Legal reserve (*) 1,070,36( 857,986
Unappropriated retained earnings 17,662,523 13,267,504
Total 18,732,883 14,125,494

(*) According to the Commercial Act, the legal regeis required to accumulate at least 10% of ttuditp
dividends in each settlement period until it reach@% of its capital. The legal reserve shall rotlistributed
in cash and may only be used to compensate foedasmried forward and transfer to capital by netsah of

the general meeting of shareholders.

(2) Changes in retained earnings for the yearsceBadeember 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
ltem 2023 2022
Beginning balance 14,125,494 12,477,344
Net Income 10,049,714 4,381,904
Dividend payment (2,123,744 (3,185,615
Remeasurements for net defined benefit plans (3,318,577 451,861
Ending balance 18,732,883 14,125,494

(3) Statement of Appropriations of Retained Eargifay the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2@22sar

follows.
(In thousands of Korean won)
2023 2022
ltem Expected date of Confirmed date of
appropriation: appropriation:
Mar. 29, 203 Mar. 29, 2022
I. Unappropriated retained earnings - 17,662,523 - 13,267,508
Unappropr_iated retained earnings for the pr 10.931 390 i 8433742 il
year (deficit T T
Net income 10,049,710 - 4,381,904 -
Remeasurement of net defined benefit syste (3,318,577 - 451,862 -
Il. Appropriated retained earnings 3,504,177 - 2,336,118
Dividend 3,185,615 2,123,744 -
Reserve 318,562 212,374 -
[ll. Unappropriated retained earnings carried 14 158.346 il 10.931.390
forward to the subsequent ye T T




(4) Dividend

(D Calculation details of dividends for the yearsemh®ecember 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows.

(In thousands of Korean woh)

ltem

2023

2022

Number of shares to be divided

106,187,182 shares

106,187,182 shar

1%
2]

Par value per share

500

500

Par dividend rate

6%

4%

Dividend

3,185,615,460

2,123,743,640

@ Calculation details of propensity to dividends fbe years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as

follows.
(In thousands of Korean won)
Item 2023 2022
Dividend 3,185,615,460 2,123,743,640
Net income 10,049,710,279 4,381,903,766
Propensity to dividends 31.70% 48.47%

(3) Calculation details of propensity to divideridisthe years ended December 31, 2023 and 202&dodlows.

(In thousands of Korean woh)

Dividend rate

ltem 2023 2022
Dividend per share 30 20
Closing value on settlement date 4,380 2,715
0.68% 0.74%




32. Earnings per share

(1) Calculation detai
December 31, 2023

Is of basic earnings per slaiigbutable to owners of the Company for the yearded
and 2022 are as follows:

(In Korean won

Item 2023 2022

Net income attributable to common shares 10,049,710,279 4,381,903,766

)

Weighted average number of common shares issueoustanding

106,187,182 shares 106,187,182 shargs

Basic earnings per share 95 41

(*) The weighted average number of common shasegei and outstanding is the number of common shares
adjusted to the number of treasury shares acqdirgdg the accounting period or newly issued comsiwres

considering the weig

hts according to each cironaieriod to the number of common shares issuedtiamaing

at beginning of the year.

(2) Basic earnings per share and diluted earniagstpare are the same as the Company has no eiaigntial

common stock.

33. Disclosure of Re

lated Parties

(1) Details of the companies that have a spedatioaship with the Company as of December 31, 2023s

follows:
Category Company Name
Parent Harim Holdings Co., Ltd.
Subsidiaries HBC Co., Ltd., Singgreen FS Co., L%thggreen Vina Co., Ltd.

Other related partie

dRelated parties of Harim Holdings Co., Ltd.




(2) The Company engages in transactions with rlpsgties, such as sale of goods and provisioemices,
and transactions such as sale and purchases \atedgarties for the years ended December 31, 2643
2022 are as follows:

@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean won)
s | Oher | Diponaof| "1gl Puchase o) otrer | Acasiion
material:
Cog;rt(i)tlyling Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 424,793 - - - - 3,619,685 309,857,
HBC Co., Ltd. 105,105 12,363 - 4,647,189 1,769,905 2,436 -
Subsidiaried ngim Animal Clinic (*2) 1,353 - - - - - -
Singgree FS Co., Lt 2,306,644 - - 2,708,190 - 180 -
BNP Co., Ltd. (*3 87,765 19,368 - 1,830,833 37,534 9,812 377,164
A CCER TR & IR
Excello Equine R&D Center 3,254 - - - - - -
Glyde Co., Ltd. 372,973 - - - - - -
Donglim Corporation 3,619 - - - - 71,660 608,500
DD F&B Co., Ltd. 14,160 - - - - - -
Maxican Co., Ltd. 4,963 - - - - - -
Sunjin Corporation 298,858 - - - - 1,200 -
Sunjin FS Co., Ltd. 64,865 - - 21,741 457,823 3,746 -
Sunjin Farm Co., Ltd. 47,773 - - - 83 - -
Ever Miracle Co., Ltd. - - - - 36 279,977 -
HS Food Co., Ltd. 22,833 - - - 92 - -
Eco Capital Co., Ltd. 8,135 - - - - - -
ND Co., Ltd. 47,700 - - - - - -
N Bicorn Co., Ltd. 160,058 - - - - 29,440 -
NS Shopping Co., Ltd. 3,992,090 3,715 - - - 661,787, -
Other | ORPUM Co., Ltd. 6,508,248 48,670 - 2,435,339 - - -
Liitizg Charm Trading Co., Ltd. 6,916,561 - - 3,961,824 560 19,709 -
Farmsco Co., Ltd. (*1) 1,841,719 - - 279,953 1,109 16,929 -
POSSM Co., Ltd. 15,315 - - - - - -
Harim Industry Co., Ltd. 3,624,996 8,908 - 588,137| 7,676,982 171,820 -
Harim Distribution Co., Ltd. 8,621,486 - - - - - -
Harim Pet Food Co., Ltd. 986,451 - - - 5,804 - -
Harim Food Co., Ltd. 2,597 - - - - - -
Sunjin Hanmaeul Co., Ltd. 13,650 - - . - _ _
Soonwoori Hanwoo Co., Ltd. 4,916 3,029 - - 4,989 - -
Joowonsan Ducks Co., Ltd. 482,350 - - 36,579 3,427,191 117,573 -
E:?)r,r,nlft(c:jo Bio Inte Agriculturg 8,992 ) ) ) ) ) )
Jeil Feed Co., Ltd. 1,381,298 - - - 174,140 1,103,157 -
Pan Ocean Co., Ltd. 99,998 - - - - - -
Hangang Food Co., Ltd. 12,154,791 19,195 - 1,311,037 74,791 1,000 -
Korea Thumb Vet Co., Ltd. 107,485 - -| 13,077,708 - 191,985 -
Korea Biotech Co., Ltd. - - - - - 2,462 1,917,777
Total 50,737,794 115,248 -| 65645879 13,631,039 6,304,558 3,213,298




(*1) The Group has made agreements for lendingmaterials of compounded feed with other relatedgzar
and the amount of transfer (cost of raw materiatted) is KRW1,984,500,000 and the transaction amou
(cost of recovered raw materials) for the curreartqd is KRW1,984,500,000.

(*2) During 2023, Harim Animal Clinic Co., Ltd. was ligiated due to conversion to a non-profitable
corporation.

(*3) During 2023, BNP Co., Ltd. was absorbed and mengtedts subsidiary, HBC Co., Ltd.



@ 2022

(In thousands of Korean won)

s | Oher | Dipenaof| "1gl Puchase o) other | Acaisiion
material:
Cogt“?'"”g Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 284,612 : . : -| 21,031,137 -
ntity
HBC Co., Ltd. 11,422 75,018 - 4,504,938 83,798 319,059 -
Harim Animal Clinic 1,627 - - - - - -
Subsidiarieg Singgreen FS Co., Ltd. 1,928,593 - - 1,621,399 - 1,521 -
BNP Co., Ltd. 8,273 163,933 - 3,929,023 93,500 - -
SINGGREEN VINA CO., LTD. - 34,745 - - - - N
HARIM USA Ltd. - 12,368 - - - - -
Pan Ocean (America) Inc. - - -1 24,374,149 - - -
oo I sl
PT. CAHAYA TECHNOLOGY ) 5 665 ) ) ) ] ]
UNGGAS '
Glyde Co., Ltd. 884,889 - 1,688 - - - -
Donglim Corporation 6,175 - - - - 24,881 781,100
DD Fé&B Co., Ltd. 12,516 - - - - - -
Maxican Co., Ltd. 4,129 - - - - - -
Sunjin Corporation (*) 286,594 - - - - 1,200 -
Sunijin FS Co., Ltd. 61,346 - - 18,535 917,079 3,746 -
Sunjin Farm Co., Ltd. 44,348 - - - 1,547 - -
Ever Miracle Co., Ltd. - - - - - 214,216 -
HS Food Co., Ltd. 54,125 - - - 1,308,105 14,137 -
Eco Capital Co., Ltd. 14,099 - - - - - -
ND Co., Ltd. 286,200 - - - - - -
N Bicorn Co., Ltd. 125,748 - - - - 36,624 -
NS Shopping Co., Ltd. 3,555,068 - - - - 452,206 -
e il I N I N N B
parties [ 5epUM Co., Ltd. 3,879,098 44,620 -l 1581503 69,888 - -
Charm Trading Co., Ltd. 6,119,922 - - 4,237,200 104,103 30,557 -
Farmsco Co., Ltd. 1,709,754 - - 99,340 745 - -
Farmsco Food Co., Ltd. 412,204 - - 6,958 1,409 - -
POSSM Co., Ltd. 23,639 - - - - - -
Harim Industry Co., Ltd. 4,411,364 27,580 - 588,931 14,760,651 100,214 -
Harim MS Co., Ltd. 2,254 - - - - - -
Harim Distribution Co., Ltd. 8,132,215 - - - - - -
Harim Pet Food Co., Ltd. 710,911 - - - 5,857 (79,973) -
Harim Food Co., Ltd. 4,391 - - - - - -
Sunjin Hanmaeul Co., Ltd. 17,789 - - - - - _
Soonwoori Hanwoo Co., Ltd. 6,980 8,288 - - 10,963 2,375 -
Joowonsan Ducks Co., Ltd. 443,588 - - 2,292 1,920,397 2,110 -
CF:?)r-r’nIi(éo Bio Inte Agricultural 9,944 ) ) ) ) ) )
Jeil Feed Co., Ltd. 1,325,319 - - - 227,556 1,093,182 -
Pan Ocean Co., Ltd. 185,805 - - - - - -
Hangang Food Co., Ltd. 28,630,282 19,919 - 2,673,441 393,873 8,711 -
Korea Thumb Vet Co., Ltd. 89,304 - .| 14,997,532 - 129,100 -
Total 63,704,439 389,136 1,688 86,570,539 19,899,471 23,385,003 781,100




(*1) The Company has made agreements for lendingnnaterials of compounded feed with other related
parties and the amount of transfer (cost of rawensls rented) is none and the transaction amaast Of
recovered raw materials) for the current periodR&\V772,000,000.

(*2) In 2022, the controlling entity, Harim HoldiagCo., Ltd., was fined KRW 17.196,000,000 by the Fa
Trade Commission in relation to the sale of fresicleen meat. Since this fine was incurred due éddsiness
activities of the Company before the split, Hariraldings claimed indemnity for the fine to be paidthe
Company. The profit and loss effect related to finig is included in other expenses in the staténoén
comprehensive income, and the related liabilitinéduded in accounts payable and other liabilitied long-
term accounts payable and other liabilities indtagement of financial positions



(3) Receivables and payables from and/or to relpéeties as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, amalaws$:

D Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean wo
Receivables Payables
Category Company Trade Security re)zzti:\?;l;fas Trade Account
receivable deposits otc '| payables | payables, etc.
Coé‘gtci’t')'fng Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 16,846  2,775,86( - - 7,756,545
Subsidiaries HBC Co-. Lid 12,60¢ - - 808,96: -
Singgreen FS Co., Ltc 42,15¢ - - 77,08t 10,00(
PAN OCEAN TRADING &
LOGISTICS PTELTD. - - - 2,799,21! -
Excello Equine R&D Center 88 - - - -
Glyde Co., Ltd. 25,654 - - - -
DD F&B Co., Ltd. 528 - - - -
Sunjin Corporation 14,826 - - - -
Sunjin FS Co., Ltc 5,76¢ - - 14,23( 31z
Sunjin Farm Co., Ltd. 3,238 - - - -
Ever Miracle Co., Ltd. - - - 25,446
N Bicorn Co., Ltd. 13,640 - - - -
NS Shopping Co., Ltd. 145,943 - - - -
ORPUM Co., Ltc 701,83! - 26,46¢ 144,06 -
Othzfrtr%':ted Charm Trading Co., Ltd. 340,448 - - 220,385 12,005
part Farmsco Co., Ltd. 48,558 - - 3,285 -
Harim Industry Co., Ltd. 164,545 - 4,714 337,935 72,810
Harim Distribution Co., Ltd. 33,846 - - - -
Harim Pet Food Co., Lt 76,63t - - 741 -
Harim Food Co., Ltd. 48 - - - -
Soonwoori Hanwoo Co., Ltd 129 - 3,332 - -
Joowonsan Ducks Co., Ltd. 39,922 - - 316,927 -
Farmsco Bio Inte Agricultural 657 i i i i
Co., Ltd
Jeil Feed Co., Ltd. 68,094 595,428 - 70,750 96,937
Hangang Food Co., Ltd. 6,118,194 - 4,132 48,427 -
Korea Thumb Vet Co., Lt 9,15¢ - - 1,389,20 42,26(
Total 7,883,405 3,371,288 38,642 6,231,219 8,016,315

(*) It includes the fine of KRW5,732,000,000 to jp&id to the controlling entity, Harim Holdings Chbtd.



@ Dec 31, 2022

(In thousands of Korean wo
Receivables Payables
Category Company Trade Security reézzti:\?;l;}fas Trade Account
receivable deposits otc '| payables | payables, etc.
Coé‘gtci’t')'fng Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 19,998 2,775,860 - -l 16,200,599
HBC Co., Ltd 414 - 6,99¢ 770,98( 17,15t
Subsidiaries| Singgreen FS Co., Ltd. (*1) 98,693 - - 12,092 -
BNP Co., Ltd. 223 - 14,204 1,021,721 -
S T - - | asamas -
Glyde Co., Ltd. 89,414 - - - -
DD F&B Co., Ltd. 528§ - - - -
Sunjin Corporation 14,750 - - - -
Sunjin FS Co., Ltd. 5,834 - - 63,186 312
Sunjin Farm Co., Lt 5,08: - - - -
Ever Miracle Co., Ltd. - - - 11,068|
HS Food Co., Ltd. 4,388 - - 617 -
N Bicorn Co., Ltd. 11,471 - - - -
NS Shopping Co., Ltd. 361,379 - - - -
ORPUMCo., Ltd 203,93( - 1,10¢ 77,75 -
Other related Charm Trading Co., Ltd. 109,893 - - 252,550 8,760
parties | carmsco Co., Ltd. 50,566 - - 1,275 -
Farmsco Food Co., Ltd. 14,748 - - - -
Harim Industry Co., Ltd. 424,187 - 1,242 1,109,611 44,894
Harim Distribution Co., Ltc 327 - - - -
Harim Pet Food Co., Ltd. 71,316 - - - -
Harim Food Co., Ltd. 27p - - - -
Hangang Food Co., Ltd. 5,457,140 - 1,544 10,466 -
Soonwoori Hanwoo Co., Ltd 356 - - 419 -
Joowon Asta Ducks Co., Ltd| 34,903 - - 158,950 -
Jeil Feed Co., Ltd. 83,336 571,610 - - 103,641
Pan Ocean Co., Ltd. 341 - - - -
Korea Thumb Vet Co., Ltd. 8,420 - - 694,349 17,408
Total 7,071,890 3,347,470 25,089 9,122,398 16,403,837

(*) It includes the fine of KRW14,330,000,000 to feid to the controlling entity, Harim Holdings Chbtd.



(4) There is no guarantee provided by the Grouplaied parties as of Dec 31, 2023.

(5) The Company has determined that registeredesffiwith important authorities and responsib#itier the
planning, operation and control of its activitige ghe key management and the remunerations paikkfo
management for years ended December 31, 2023 &2da28 as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
Item 2023 2022
Short-term employee wage 2,857,804 2,406,055
Other long-term employee benefits - 144
Retirement benefits 872,197 175,350
Total 3,730,001 2,581,544

(6) There are no guarantees and collaterals pro\igieelated parties as of December 31, 2023.

(7) Fund transactions with related parties foryibars ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, are aw$oll

@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean woh)
Categor CompanyName Dividend Paymel
Controlling Company Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 1,218,568
Others Major Management and Others 32,358
@ 2022
(In thousands of Korean woh)
Category Company Dividend Paymen| Financial Incomg  Investment
Controlling Company Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 1,827,853 - -
Subsidiary SingGreen FS Co., L1 - 34,74¢ 6,000,00i!
Major Management i i
Others and Other 48,519




34. Financial Instruments

(1) Classification of financial instruments by agdey

Carrying amounts of financial instruments by catggrs of December 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows

D Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean wo

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

ltem measured at measured at measured at fair | measured at fair
amortized co! amortized co! value value

Cash and cash equivalents 40,503,091 - - -

Short-term financial instruments 23,170,00( - - -

Long-term financial instruments 14,241,058 - - -

Trade and other receivables 85,822,668 - - -

Ir_:Cneg?\—/t:tr)lrg trade rand other 7.066,839 ) ) )

Other financial assets 2,110 - 469,200 -

Total financial assets 170,805,766 - 469,200 -
Trade and other payables 108,324,267
Ir;ggggcleerm trade and other 921,699
Short-term borrowings 313,832,309
Long-term borrowings 91,038,90(
Other financial liabilities 514,117,171

Total financial liabilities 40,503,091 - - -




@ Dec 31, 2022

(In thousands of Korean wo

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

ltem measured at measured at measured at fair | measured at fair
amortized co: amortized co: value value
Cash and cash equivalents 49,176,878 - - -
Short-term financial instruments 68,805,381 - - -
Long-term financial instruments 6,931,410 - - -
Trade and other receivables 77,310,[757 - - -
Long-term trade rand other 8,614,503 - - -
receivable
Other financial assets 1,325 - 196,080 -
Long-term other financial assets 2,110 - - -
Total financial assets 210,842,364 - 196,080 -

Trade and other payables - 111,548,344 - -
Long-term trade and other - 6,199,574 - -
payable
Short-term borrowings - 395,123,03% - -
Long-term borrowings - 67,803,321 - -
Other financial liabilities - - 920,722

Total financial liabilities 580,674,27% - 920,722




(2) Details of financial incomes and financial empes by category of financial instruments for tearg ended

December 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

n)

(In thousands of Korean wo
item 2023 | 2022
Financial assets measured at amortized cost:
Interest income 2,802,354 3,813,513
Gain on foreign currency transactions 3,974 4,144
Loss on foreign currency transactions (88,505) (10,994
Gain on foreign currency translation 9,126 770
Loss on foreign currency translation (2,910) (65,033
Import guarantee fee - 34,746
Reversal of allowance for bad debt (bad debt esgen 164,756 16,360
Financial assets measured at fair value:
Gain on trading of derivatives 19,418,494 6,449,431
Loss on trading of derivatives (19,642,581 (6,410,754
Gain on valuation of derivatives 469,200 196,080
Loss on valuation of derivatives (196,080 (928,110
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:
Interest expense (21,299,335 (17,887,792
Gain on foreign currency transactions 1,730,510 3,294,904
Loss on foreign currency transactions (5,649,741 (18,827,685
Gain on foreign currency translation 2,478,181 7,637,956
Loss on foreign currency translation (544,994 (2,467,774
Total (20,347,547 (25,150,238




(3) Currency risk

(D Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risi Becember 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(Unit: USD, EUR, CAD, JPY, KRW 1,000)
Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Account . KRW . KRW
Foreign currency : Foreign currency .
equivalen equivalen
usD 819,634 1,056,836 USD 17,064 21,625
_ EUR - -| EUR 9,962 13,461
Cash and cash equivalents
CAD - -| CAD 1,563 1,462
JPY 50,710,62( 462,81 JPY 112,241,924 1,069,868
Total foreign currency assets 1,519,652 1,106,416
. usD 91,560,655 189,456,16% USD 149,495,908 189,456,16%
Short-term borrowings
EUR - 3,086,871 EUR 2,284,540 3,086,871
Total foreign currency liabilitie 118,058,309 123,946,908

@ Sensitivity analysis

The Company internally measures the foreign exohaistx of exchange rate fluctuations on a reguéesis
When assuming that all other variables are conagnf December 31, 2023 and 2022, the resulsnsitivity
analysis on the effects of potential fluctuationsekchange rates on the Company's pre-tax net m@omd
equity to the reasonable extent are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Currency FX rate chang
Up Down Up Down

uUSD 10% (11,700,147 11,700,147 (18,943,454 18,943,454
EUR 10% (307,341 307,341
CAD 10% 146 (146)
JPY 10% 46,282 (46,282) 106,987 (106,987

Total (11,653,865 11,653,864 (19,143,662 19,143,662




(4) Liquidity risk

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities asDecember 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

D Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean wc

Carrying | Contractual| Within 3 | 3 months ~
Item 1-2 years | Over 2 years
amoun cash flov month: 1 yea
Trade and other 108,324,267 108,324,268 97,796,121 10,528,147 ; ;
payable
Short-term 313,832,300 320,083,108 46,335,515 273,747,593 ; ;
borrowing
Long-term trade and ¢, 595 921 gog : : 255,000 666,695
other payables
Long-term 91,038,900 94,372,240 371,990 1,124,147 80,480,858 12,395,248
borrowing
Lease liabilities 3,771,309 4,033,447 663,823 1,534,487 884,977 950,161
Total 517,888,480 527,734,758 145,167,449 286,934,374 81,620,833 14,012,101

Meanwhile, in addition to the above other finandiabilities and long-term other financial liabiés, the
maximum amount of guarantees the Company can assodez the financial guarantee contracts provided b
the Company as of December 31, 2023 is KRW6,6280902

@ Dec 31, 2022

(In thousands of Korean wo
ltem Carrying | Contractual| Within 3 | 3 months ~ 1-2 years | Over 2 years
amoun cash flov month: 1 yea
Trade and other 111,548,344 107,716,090 104,321,860 3,394 23 ; ;
payable
Short-term 395,123,03% 398,731,265 96,075,527 302,655,738 - -
borrowing
Long-term trade and 5 199 574 10 031.83¢ ; .| 9,564,255 467,575
other payables
Long-term 67,803,321 72,315,139 386,975 1,182,323 16,359,856 54,385,983
borrowing
Other financial 920,722 920,722 ; ; 920,722 -
liabilities
Lease liabilities 3,659,458 3,963,171 561,355 1,678,192 1,100,906 622,718
Total 585,254 45% 593678217 201345717 308,910,485 27.945739 55 476,276

The management of the Company believes that fiahhabilities can be repaid by cash flows from @ti;g
activities and cash inflows from financial assdiganwhile, the Company enters into a credit linoibttact
with the major bank to manage liquidity risks thaty arise temporarily.



(5) Credit risk

(D Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of a financial asset repres#rgsmaximum exposure to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk of the Company as of Deaarhi, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Iltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 40,503,091 49,176,874
Short-term financial instruments 23,170,00( 68,805,381
Long-term financial instruments 14,241,058 6,931,410
Trade and other receivables 85,822,661 77,310,756
Long-term trade and other receivables 7,066,839 8,614,503
Other financial assets 471,310 197,405
Long-term other financial assets - 2,110

Total 171,274,96% 211,038,443

As of December 31, 2023, the maximum exposure édlicrisk of financial guarantees provided by the
Company is KRW6,628,972,000. (Notes 16).

On the other hand, since the Company maintaingairgideposits in financial institutions with exeesit credit

ratings, it is expected that the credit risk framahcial institutions is not high.

@ Impairment loss

The ages of trade receivables and other receivalsieag December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the amafints
expected credit loss for receivables by age afellasvs:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
ltem Total Impaired Carrying Total Impaired Carrying
Receivable receivable amoun Receivable receivable amoun

0-3 months 84,555,364 74,566 84,480,794 75,406,864 155,645 75,251,224
4-6 months 1,384,158 70,549 1,313,609 2,008,049 146,977 1,861,071
7-9 months 30,921 7,620 23,301 241,847 68,967 172,880
10-12 months 34,894 29,934 4,960 75,782 50,200 25,582
g\éiiriz 8,000,999 934,160 7,066,839 9,772,635 1,158,133 8,614,503

Total 94,006,336 1,116,829 92,889,507 87,505,181 1,579,922 85,925,26(




(6) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk becailss floating interest rate financial liabéi

(DThe carrying amounts of floating interest rate ficial liabilities held by the Company as of DecenBg,
2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo
Item Dec 31,2023 | Dec 31, 2022
Floating interest rate financial liabilities:
Short-term borrowings 227,808,309 269,193,035
Long-term borrowings 45,750,00( 43,250,00(
Total 273,558,309 312,443,03%

@ Cash flow sensitivity analysis of floating interreste financial liabilities

If the interest rate would have changed by 100shagints, the Company's equity and profit or Idssutd have
increased or decreased at the end of the repgréngd accordingly. Assuming that other variableshsas
exchange rates do not change, the specific amo@intsanges in capital and profit or loss are alefes:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
ltem Profit or loss Capital Profit or loss Capital
100bp 100bp 100bp 100bp
100bp Up Down 100bp Up Down 100bp Up Down 100bp Up Down
Short-term| -, o2g 183} 2.278,083 (2,278,083] 2,278,083 (2,691,930] 2,691,930 (2,691,930] 2,691,93¢
borrowing
Long-term |\ 500) 457500 (457,500) 457,500 (432,500) 432,500 (43255000 432,500
borrowing
Total | (2,735,583) 2,735,583 (2,735,583} 2,735,583 (3,124,430) 3,124,430 (3,124,430) 3,124,43(




(7) Fair value

(D The carrying amounts and fair values of finanaiatruments as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,sare a

h)

}

}

follows:
(In thousands of Korean wo
Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
ftem Carrying amoun Fair value Carrying amoun Fair value
Financial assets:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 40,503,091 40,503,091 49,176,874 49,176,879
i@?rﬁ};eém financial 23,170,004 23,170,000 68,805,381 68,805,381
;%?%:ﬁgr?t financial 14,241,054 14,241,054 6,931,410 6,931,410
Trade and other receivables 85,822,664 85,822,664 77,310,757 77,310,757
L:)encge-it\(/a;[)r;;rade and other 7,066,839 7,066,839 8,614,503 8,614,503
Other financial assets 2,110 2,110 1,325 1,325
algggtg-term other financial ) ) 2110 2110
Financial assets measured at fair value
Derivatives assets 469,200 469,200 196,080 196,080
Total financial assets 171,274,96¢ 171,274,96¢ 211,038,444 211,038,444
Financial Liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Trade and other payables 108,324,267 108,324,267 111,548,344 111,548,344
;ggg&i;m trade and other 921,695 921,695 6,199,575 6,199,575
Short-term borrowings 313,832,309 313,832,309 395,123,034 395,123,034
Long-term borrowings 91,038,90( 91,038,90( 67,803,321 67,803,321
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Derivatives liabilities - - 920,722 920,722
Total financial liabilities 514,117,171 514,117,171 581,594,997 581,594,991

@ Fair value

Hierarchical fair value has the

following levels.

Level Significance of inputs

Level 1 Quoted price in an active market for theeasset or liability

Level 2 Directly or indirectly observable inputséao asset or liability

Level 3 Inputs to assets or liabilities that arélmased on observable market data




The fair value measurement by fair value leveldach type of financial instrument measured atvalue as
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

1) Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem ‘ Level 1 ‘ Level 2 | Level 3 ‘ Total
Financial assets
Derivatives assets ‘ ‘ 469,204 ‘ 469,200
2) Dec 31, 2022
(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem ‘ Level 1 ‘ Level 2 | Level 3 ‘ Total
Financial assets
Derivatives assets ‘ ‘ 196,08(1 ‘ 196,080
Financial liabilities
Derivatives liabilities | | 920,722 | 920,722

3) Descriptions on valuation techniques and inpéitsevel 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Valuation method and inputs of assets/liabilitiEssified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchyomig assets
and liabilities measured at fair values as of Demem31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

n)

(In thousands of Korean wo
ltem Dec 31, 2023| Dec 31, 2022 | Valuation method Inputs
Financial assets
Derivatives assets 469,200 196,080 Market approach Et)c(: rate, remaining maturit
Financial liabilities
Derivatives liabilities - 920,722 Market approach g,[)é rate, remaining maturit




35. Commitments and contingent liabilities

(1) Commitments with financial institutions as oé&@mber 31, 2023 are as follows:

(In USD, thousands of Korean wagn)

Lender Descriptions Amount used Limit

KEB Hana Bank uUsSD 10,602,663 USD 23,700,000
Woori Bank USD 10,278,267 USD 14,200,000
KDB USD 12,104,186 USD 30,000,000
Kookmin Bank USD 12,990,95Y usSD 20,000,000
Nonghyup Bank UsD 8,317,884 USD 12,000,000

Fisheries Cooperative X
Federatio Import L/C Guarantee USD 4,363,786 USD 10,000,000
Export-Import Bank of Korea USD 15,448,570 USD 26,000,000
Shinhan Bank UsD 7,671,148 USD 15,000,000
Jeonbuk Bank USD 2,627,033 USD 10,000,000
SC Cheil Bank USD 7,156,162 USD 20,000,000
Daegu Bank - USD 10,000,000
- USD 23,000,000

28,000,00(

Export-Import Bank of Korea Import loan
31,800,00( USD 28,000,000
2,500,000 2,500,00d
KEB Hana Bank Working capital & 62,500,000 73,750,00(
facility
KDB Working capital & 72,000,00( 72,000,000
facility
Nonghyup Bank Working capital 70,044,00( 70,044,00(
Hanyang Securities (*) Bonds 20,000,00( 20,000,00(
USD 91,560,656 USD 241,900,000
Total

KRW 286,844,000 KRW 238,294,000

(*) In cases where the benefit of time is lost fmnds other than"Sprivate placement bonds, there exists a
contractual term that loses the benefit of timeSprivate placement bonds.



(2) The pending lawsuits of the Group as of Dec2BP3 are as follows, and the outcome of the lawss of
Dec 31, 2023 is unpredictable.

(In thousands of Korean won)
Court Plaintiff Defendant Descriptions Value Progress
——— ; P
Jeonju District Lee Junhee| Harim Corporation (_Zlalm fpr da”?ages 200,000 Purialin
Cour (industrial acciden progres
Seoul Central Harim Corooration Case of violation of Monopoly | Ttrialin
District Cour b Regulation and Fair Trade / progres
Administrative fines for violation
Seoul Bukbu | Dobong-gu Harim Corporation of the Law on the Management 200 1sttrial in
District Court Office P Livestock and LivestocRroducts| progress
History
— i
S_eogl Nambu Park Yun Ok| Harim Corporation Case of objection to the mortga 38,892 2" trial in
District Cour on real esta progres
Total 239,592

(3) The outstanding derivative financial instrumenmmitments as of December 31, 2023 and 2022sare a
follows:

(In USD)

ltem Dec 31, 2023 Dec 31, 2022
Knock out Forward - 20,000,000
Capped Forward - 10,000,000
Forward Exchange - 5,000,000
Currency Forward 97,750,000 51,600,000

36. Statement of Cash Flows

(1) Significant transactions with no cash inflowsoatflows during investment and financing actestifor the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, are awsoll

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item 2023 2022
Account payables related to acquisition of PP&E 2,499,917 (505,152
Transfer of construction in progress to main act®un 47,171,03( 20,059,794
Transfer of borrowings to current portion 21,784,00( 20,440,00(




(2) Adjustments for liabilities arising from finaltactivities for the years ended December 31320%1 2022,
are as follows:

@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean won)
Non-cash chang
ltem Beginning | Cashflow | Exrate | 'ransferto) Interest Ending balance
chanae current expense Change
9 portior amortizatiol

Current Liabilities
Short-term L
borrowing; 375,433,035 (90,451,539) (1,933,187 - - 9,000,000 292,048,309
Current portion 0
long-term 19,690,000 (10,690,000 - 21,784,000 - (9,000,000) 21,784,000
borrowing
Current portion 0 ) ) ) ) ) ) )
bond:
Ei!:'ﬂ;ﬁﬁ.iﬁ‘;’“ 2,029,341 (2,783,525 - 1,106,151 323,040 1,369,390 2,044,397
Non-current liabilities
Long-term
borrowing 47,854,000 45,000,000 - (21,784,000) - - 71,070,000
Bonds 19,949,321 - - - 19,578 - 19,968,899
Lease liabilities 1,630,117 - - (1,106,151 - 1,202,947 1,726,913

Total 466,585,814 (58,925,064) (1,933,187 - 342,618 2,895,377 408,965,558
@ 2022

(In thousands of Korean won)
Non-cashchang:
ltem Beginning | Cashflow | Exrate | 'ransferto) Interest Ending balance
change current expense Change
9 portior amortizatiol

Current Liabilities
Short-term L
borrowing: 255,086,908 72,266,370 (5,170,242 - - 53,250,000 375,433,036
Current portion 0
long-term 84,248,220 (10,748,220 - 20,440,000 - (74,250,000) 19,690,000
borrowing
oumentportion ¢ 34,963,304 (35,000,000) - - 36,696 - -
Ei!i’ﬂ;ﬁﬁ.i‘.‘é’“ 1,916,659 (2,562,419 - 1,149,107 - 1,525,994 2,029,341
Non-current liabilities
Long-term
borrowing: 33,950,000 13,344,000 - (20,440,000) - 21,000,000 47,854,000
Bonds - 19,939,780 - - 9,541 - 19,949,321
Lease liabilities 2,528,301 - - (1,149,107 - 250,923 1,630,117

Total 412,693,392 57,239,511 (5,170,242 - 46,237 1,776,917 466,585,815




37. Greenhouse gas emission liabilities
(1) Greenhouse gas emission rights held for tHelfaént of obligations

@ The number of emission rights allocated free afrgh for the S planning period (2021-2025) as of Dec
31, 2023 is as follows:

(Unit: Ton (tCO2-eq))
ltem 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Total
Free allotted emission rights 77,180 77,180 77,18Q 76,456 76,456 384,452

(2 Changes and carrying amounts of emission rightd Becember 31, 2023 are as follows:

(Unit: ton (tCO2-eq), 1,000 won)

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
tem Quantity (;?]:Lylij?]g Quantity c;?:;ylij?]g Quantity (;?]:Lylij?]g Quantity (;?]:Lylij?]g Quantity (;?]:Lylij?]g
E;Z?nililr?;fmea;e 77,180 -l 77180 - 77180 { 76,454 | 76.45¢
,Ei;idltlonal allocation 15,077 ) 15,043 ) 15,04
Purchase (Sell) 2,185 43,700 5,839 47,682

Submit to the
government

Carried forward 5,000

(99,442)| (43,700)| (98,062) (47,682) (100,990

Ending balance - - - - (8,767 - 76,456 - 76,456

(*) Due to the addition of the bio business diws{tksan, Jeongeup), Meat Processing Factory B|&%, and
the livestock production plants, when submitting fiatement for the next year, the Group plangpdyor
an additional free allocation of 15,043 tons, dradstimated emission for 2023 is 100,990 tongtandhortage
of 8,767 tons will be purchased from the market surtomitted.

@ There are no emission rights provided as collesof Dec 31, 2023.

(2) Emission Liabilities

(D The Group's estimated greenhouse gas emissiotisefgear of 2023 as of December 31, 2023 are 200,9
tons (tCO2-eq) and emission liabilities for thershge of 8,767 tons (tCO2-eq) was established.

@ Changes in emission liabilities for the years ehdecember 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)

Item 2023 2022
Beginning balance 92,272 200,822
Transfer 79,078 92,272
Reversal (92,272 (200,822
Ending balance 79,078 92,272




Audit or Review Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

This Independent Auditors’ Report on Audit or Revief Internal Control over Financial Reporting ren@xed
in relation to the audit over the financial statetseof Harim Corporation as of December 31, 2023 the

audit of internal accounting control system pursu@nArticle 8 of the Act on External Audit for stio
Companies of the Republic of Korea.

Attachment 1: Independent Auditors’ Report on In&IControl over Financial Reporting

2: Report on Operating Status of Inter@aintrol over Financial Reporting



Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of

Harim Corporation

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited Harim Corporation’s (the “Comparigtgrnal control over financial reporting (“ICFR&s
of December 31, 2023 based on the criteria estaalisn the Conceptual Framework for Designing and
Operating ICFR (“ICFR Design and Operation Framdsjor

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all malerespects, effective internal control over final
reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on ICF&gbend Operation Framework.

We also have audited, in accordance with Koreandatas on Auditing (“KSAs”), the financial statenteiof

the Company, which comprise the statements of ii@mosition as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
statements of comprehensive income, changes intyegodl cash flows for the years then ended, andsnot
comprising significant accounting policies and otleplanatory information, and our report dated dhat4,
2024 expressed an unqualified opinion on thosenfiizd statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with KSAs. @sponsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for thadit of the Internal Control over Financial Refiog section

of our report. We are independent of the Comparacaordance with the ethical requirements thatelevant

to our audit of the internal control over finandi@porting in Republic of Korea, and we have figfil our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with thesguirements. We believe that the audit evidencenaue
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provideais for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged thi Governance for the Internal Control over
Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for degigoiperating and maintaining effective internaitcol
over financial reporting and for its assessmerihefeffectiveness of internal control over finahc#gporting,
included in the accompanying Report on OperatirguStof Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Those charged with governance are responsiblevierseeing the Company’s internal control over foah
reporting.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on@oenpany’s internal control over financial reportingsed on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordanck WBAs. Those standards require that we plan arfdrpe
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouhwiheffective internal control over financial refiog was
maintained in all material respects.



Our audit of internal control over financial repogd included obtaining an understanding of intercattrol
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thabderial weakness exists, and testing and evaytie design
and operating effectiveness of internal controkblasn the assessed risk.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for extepurposes
in accordance with Korean International Financiap®&ting Standards (“K-IFRS”). A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maartee of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfamky reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with K-IFR&] that receipts and expenditures of the companlyeang
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetiction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opalition

of the company’s assets that could have a maeffedt on the financial statements.

Due to its inherent limitations, internal contr@ko financial reporting may not prevent or deteidstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivemés future periods are subject to the risk thatrads may
become inadequate because of changes in conditoribat the degree of compliance with the polioes
procedures may deteriorate.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingisnitdependent auditors’ report is CPA, Hwang Y &aok.

Samil PricewaterhouseCoopers

Representative Director YOON Hoon Soo

Mar. 14, 2024

This report is effective as of the audit reporteddmarch 14, 2024 Certain subsequent events
circumstances, which may occur between the ayglirtelate and the time of reading this report, ddalve
a material impact on the Company’s Internal Contsedr Financial Reportingdccordingly, the readers ¢
the audit report should understand that there @saipility that the above audit report may havedaevised
to reflect the impact of such subsequent eventironmstances, if any.




Report on Operating Status of Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

To the Shareholders, Board of Directors and Audin@ittee of
Harim Corporation

We, asthe Chief Exeaitive Officer andthe Internal Control Officer of the Company assessedperding
statusof the Company'dnternalControl over FinancialReporting(1CFR”) for theyearendedDecember
31,2023.

Design andbperationof ICFR is the responsibilityof the Company’smanagemenincluding the Chief
Executive Officer and the Internal ControlOfficer. We evaluatedwhetherthe Companyeffectively
designedandoperatedts ICFR to preventanddetecterrorsor fraudswhich maycausea misstatemenn
financial statement$o ensure preparatioanddisclosureof reliablefinancial information. We usedthe
‘Guidelinesfor Internal Control over Financial Reporting’ for evaluatingdesignand operationof the
Company'dCFR, establishedy the OperatingCommitteeof Internal Control over FinancialReporting
in Korea(* ICFR Committee”).

Basedon ourassessmentye concludedhatthe Company'dCFR is designechndoperaté effectivelyas
of December 312023,in all materialrespects, irmccordancevith the ‘Guiddine s for Internal Control
overFinancialReporting’.

We certify thatthis reportdoesnot containanyuntruestatemenof afact or omit to stateafactnecessary
to be presentedherein.We alsocertify thatthis reportdoesnot containor presentany statementsvhich
might causematerialmisunderstandingsf thereadersandwe havereviewad andverified thisreportwith
sufficientcare.

January 30, 2024

Representative Directdeong Hoseok
Internal Control Officer Hong Seokjin



Information on External Audit

This Information on External Audit is attached puanst to the provision of the Article 18(3) of

the “Act on External Audit of Stock Companies”.

1. Scope of Audit

Company

Harim Corporation

Audited fiscal year

For the Year Ended December2823

(Unit: person, time)

2. Number of Audit Participants and Audit Hours
CPA responsible for audit Experts in Eﬁﬁgzrs. in
Quality | pirector in IT- madeindustry
Participants / No. of | control charge | Registered| Probation| audit/tax/ including Total
personnel and time |  reviewer (Engagemer]  CPA cPA | valuation, construction
Partner) €. | contract, etc
2023| 2022 | 2023| 2022| 2023 |2022|20232022| 20232022 2023 |2022| 2023| 2022
No. of personnel input 5 6 1 1 11 13| 3| 5 7 6 - - 27 31
Quarter/alf| o |16 |\ 43| 27| 815|755 |126/180| - | - | - | - |1,000 978
Time | Year review
Audit 91 33 99 96 | 1,3681,665/190| 594 | 467 | 503 - - 12,215/ 2,891
Total 107 | 49 142 | 123 (2.183(2,420|316| 774 | 467 | 503 - - |3,215| 3,869




3. Major Descriptions

on Audit

Classification

Details

. Period 06.19.2023 ~ 12.20.20p3 5 |days
Overall audit plan — — - -
(start phase) Contents Decision on procedures and timing of audit basetheroverall understandi
of the Company and industry
. Input - . .
Period Full ime bart fime Descriptions on major audit works
09.19.2023 ~
06.23.2023 d it [Evaluation of design of internal accounting co
07.17.2023 ~ 10/dayg 5 |persons 3 person%ystem, early demonstration audit
12.11.2023
Major information o] 10 16.2023 ~
field audit 10.20.2023 10 ldavd 5 s 3 [Evaluation of operation of internal accounting ¢o
12.11.2023 ~ ays persons person%ystem, early demonstration audit
12.15.2023
01.16.2024 ~ Question, analytical procedures and sample
01.19.2024 9 ldavs 5 s 3 ((documentation, realculation and etc.) on significg
01.22.2024 ~ ¥s persons personBalances and disclosures in the consolidated
01.26.2024 separate financial statements
Due diligence on Time 01.08.2024 1 day
inventories Location Head Office in Iksan, Factory in Jeoneup
(attendance) Target Whole of Inventories
Due diligence on Time 01.08.2024 | 1| day
financial assets Location Head Office in Iksan
(attendance) Target Cash on hand, membership and etc.
Financial Payables & S
External transactions (0] Receivables (0] Investigation through lawyers d
investigations . .
g . Other . Inventories stored in other places
investigation

Communications wif]
those charged with

Communication

4 |Times

governance Period 05.11.2023 /08.08.2023 / 11.02.2023 / 020231
Use of external Activity -
experts Period - ‘ - ‘ day

4. Communications with Auditor (Audit Committee)

No. Date Attendees Method Descriptions on major disouss
Company: Audit Committee Physicall Quarterly review progress report, Key audit
1 | 05.11.2023 External Auditors: Responsible Mgetin y plans,Responsibilities of the management gand
Director and CPA in charg 9 | auditors Key audit matte!
Company: Audit Committee : . .
2 | 08.08.2023 External Auditors: Responsible Physu_:ally Half-year review progress report, Key audit
. . Meeting | matters and etc.
Director and CPA in char
Company: Audit Committee . . .
3 | 11.02.2023 External Auditors: Responsible Physu_:ally Half-year review progress report, Key audit
. . Meeting | matters and etc.
Director and CPA in char
Company: Audit Committee Phvsicall Year-end audit progress report, Independence,
4 | 02.13.2024 External Auditors: Responsible M)éetin y Subsequent events, Internal accounting
Director and CPA in char 9 control system audit and ¢






